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eSun Holdings Limited is a member of the Lai Sun Group which had been established in Hong Kong since

1947. Following a change in business direction in mid-2000, the Company has focused on the development

and operation of, and investment in, telecommunications, media, entertainment and other related

businesses, through Internet and other electronic means.

* Listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
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B U S I N E S S R E V I E W

Overview of Results

The year under review witnessed a gradual and orderly shift in

business direction of the Group. Since the last quarter of the year

ended 31st December, 2000, the Group had increased in stages its

investment in satellite television operation and film and

entertainment production. This transformation is still in progress

as at the date of this report but solid foundations have been laid.

During this transitional period, the operating results of the Group

had been affected to a certain degree, when contributions from

businesses being phased out decreased whilst new businesses being

developed had yet to make any significant positive contributions.

For the year ended 31st December, 2001, the Group reported a net

loss attributable to shareholders of HK$181,688,000, compared

with a restated net loss of HK$1,128,705,000 for 2000. The figures

for the year 2000 had been restated following the adoption of

Statement of Standard Accounting Practice (‘‘SSAP’’) 30 and

Interpretation 13 issued by the Hong Kong Society of

Accountants. Consequent upon a review and assessment of the

fair value of the goodwill previously eliminated against reserves in

accordance with the provision of SSAP 31, it was decided by the

Board that an impairment of goodwill amounting to approximately

HK$823,055,000 as at 31st December, 2000 should be recognized.

This change in accounting policy has been accounted for

retrospectively as a prior year adjustment in accordance with the

transitional provisions of SSAP 30.
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B U S I N E S S R E V I E W ( c o n t i n u e d )

Overview of Results (continued)

This prior year adjustment has resulted in amounts of

HK$595,610,000 and HK$227,445,000, representing impairment

of goodwill arising on acquisition of associates and subsidiaries,

respectively, being charged to the consolidated profit and loss

account for the year ended 31st December, 2000. The recognition

of the abovementioned impairment in value of the investments

acquired had been made in accordance with the requirement of

SSAP 31 and after careful and thorough evaluation of the potential

for growth and development of principally the Internet-related

assets involved.

The net loss for the year under review was partly attributable to the

discontinuation of contributions from the hotel and restaurant

operations of the Group, which had been the biggest contributor of

turnover and operating profit for the year 2000. Revenue for the

year from the Group’s advertising agency services, which the Group

acquired in July 2000, remained stable when compared with the

annualised figure for the 6-month operation in 2000, although the

profit margin attained was thin.

Lower interest income also had an unfavourable impact on the

results. The bulk of interest income of the Group was derived from

the outstanding indebtedness due from Furama Hotel Enterprises

Limited. Consequent upon completion of the reorganization

agreement entered into with Lai Sun Development Company

Limited in July 2000, the amount of this indebtedness had been

reduced from HK$1.9 billion to approximately HK$1.5 billion, and

applicable interest rates had also been revised downwards.

In addition to the above factors, a loss of HK$65,853,000 on

disposal of the Group’s holdings in SUNDAY Communications

Limited and other short-term investments, and a write-off of

goodwill totalling HK$32,990,000 on the acquisition of two

associates and one joint venture during the year under review

had been recorded. As the Group no longer holds any significant

listed short-term investments, it is expected that losses of similar

magnitude will not be recurring in the year ending 31st December,

2002.
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B U S I N E S S R E V I E W ( c o n t i n u e d )

Satellite Television Operation

As reported in the last interim report of the Company, the television

programme production centre of East Asia Satellite Television

Limited (‘‘EAST’’) commenced operation in the second quarter of

2001. Daily broadcast of programmes in Chinese produced by

EAST at its Aberdeen, Hong Kong, production centre on the ‘‘Life

Channel’’ of EAST commenced in July 2001.

Progress in the construction work of the EAST Television City in

COTAI City in Macau Special Administrative Region is slightly

behind schedule due to finalisation of detailed design plans.

Films Production and Distribution

During the year under review, the Group increased its equity

interest in Media Asia Holdings Ltd. (‘‘MAH’’) to 35.13%. The core

businesses of MAH are the production, provision and distribution

of films, television programmes and other media-related consumer

products. In view of the recent revival of activities in the Hong

Kong movie industry, a number of potential film projects are being

evaluated by MAH.

During the year, the Group acquired a 50% interest in The Artiste

Campus International Limited, which specialises in the provision of

agency services for artistes in the entertainment industry. The

Group believes that, through this joint venture, the Group will have

greater access to media and entertainment talents, which should

complement other film production and entertainment operations of

the Group.

Entertainment

East Asia Entertainment Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Company, had organised and participated in the production of a

series of pop concerts and entertainment shows in Hong Kong since

the last quarter of the year under review. These projects are

complementary to other operations of the Group and will achieve

the objective of raising the profile of the East Asia Entertainment

group.
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B U S I N E S S R E V I E W ( c o n t i n u e d )

Internet-related Operations

As foreshadowed in the last interim report, the Group had been

reviewing the performance of the Internet-related operations

closely. A loss for these operations had been reported for the year

under review and during 2001, operation of a website of the Group

had been discontinued.

P R O S P E C T S

The Group aims to be a leading Chinese language movie and

television programme content provider for distribution through

terrestrial, cable TV and satellite channels primarily to viewers in

the Greater China region and to Chinese-speaking viewers around

the world.

Since the launch of the EAST ‘‘Life Channel’’ in July 2001,

continuous improvements had been made to raise the quality of

programmes. The programme production capacity of the Group

will be substantially boosted when the EAST Television City in

Macau Special Administrative Region is completed in the year 2003.

It is expected that in addition to potential advertising revenue of the

satellite television channel, the sale of television programmes will

be another important source of revenue for the EAST operation in

the future.

Due to the nature of the movie industry, the Group does not expect

that any significant contributions will be derived from the potential

film projects currently under consideration by MAH in the financial

year ending 31st December, 2002. However, the Group is confident

that MAH, with its experience and strengths in the local movie and

entertainment industry, will be able to select projects with the best

potential.

In contrast to film production, organising pop concerts and

entertainment shows will generate revenue in a shorter time span.

The Group will be organising a number of concerts by popular and

leading singers during the year 2002. As stated above, projects of

this nature will complement the other operations of the Group and

will help raise the profile of the East Asia Entertainment group.
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P R O S P E C T S ( c o n t i n u e d )

The Group believes that whilst certain Internet-related projects will

complement the satellite television and movie and entertainment

businesses of the Group and therefore should be retained, the

investment costs of other Internet-related projects should be

written down to more realistic levels as a matter of prudence,

pending any possible improvement in market conditions and

sentiment.

L I Q U I D I T Y A N D F I N A N C I A L R E S O U R C E S

As at 31st December, 2001, the Group had cash and cash

equivalents of HK$53,865,000. The total bank borrowings, due

within one year and secured by the Group’s land and buildings,

was HK$25,000,000. The Group’s gearing was considered low, as

the debt to equity ratio was only 1%, expressed as a percentage of

total bank borrowings to total net assets.

Future capital expenditures will mainly consist of the land and

construction cost for the EAST Television City in COTAI City in

Macau.

The Group believes its cash holding, liquid asset value, future

revenue and available banking facilities will be sufficient to fund its

capital expenditure and working capital requirements.

C O N T I N G E N T L I A B I L I T I E S

Details of contingent liabilities of the Group at the balance sheet

date are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

E M P L O Y E E S A N D R E M U N E R A T I O N P O L I C I E S

The Group employed a total of approximately 170 employees as at

31st December, 2001. The total staff costs including net pension

contributions for the year was approximately HK$36,000,000. Pay

rates for employees are maintained at competitive levels, salary and

bonuses are rewarded on a performance related basis. Other staff

benefits include free hospitalization insurance plan, subsidized

medical care and subsidies for external educational and training

programs. The Company adopted a share option scheme for its

directors and employees on 25th November, 1996.
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On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank the shareholders and

business associates of the Company for their support during the

year. I would also like to record a vote of thanks to the employees

of the Group, my fellow Directors and Mr. Stephen Hung, the

former vice-chairman, for their valuable contributions to the

development of the Group.

Lien Jown Jing, Vincent

Chairman

Hong Kong

19th April, 2002
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The Directors hereby present their report and the audited financial statements of the Company and its

subsidiaries (the ‘‘Group’’) for the year ended 31st December, 2001.

P R I N C I P A L A C T I V I T I E S

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries

comprise the development and operation of, and investment in media, entertainment, Internet and

technology-oriented businesses, the provision of advertising agency services and the management of hotel

operations. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the

year. During the year ended 31st December, 2000, the Group discontinued its investments in hotel and

restaurant operations as further detailed in note 5 to the financial statements.

S E G M E N T I N F O R M A T I O N

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and contribution to results by principal activity and geographical area of

operations for the year ended 31st December, 2001 is set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

R E S U L T S A N D D I V I D E N D S

Details of the results of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2001 and the state of affairs of the

Company and of the Group at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 24 to 80.

No interim dividend was paid or declared in respect of the year ended 31st December, 2001 (2000 : Nil).

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31st

December, 2001 (2000 : Nil).

D I R E C T O R S

The Directors of the Company who were in office during the year and those as at the date of this report are

as follows:

Lien Jown Jing, Vincent (Chairman)

Lee Po On (Chief Executive Officer)

Lam Kin Ngok, Peter

Lim Por Yen

Liu Ngai Wing

Shi Nan Sun (appointed on 1st September, 2001)

Lam Kin Ming

Tam Wai Chu, Maria

U Po Chu

Shiu Kai Wah

Chiu Wai

Victor Yang

Alfred Donald Yap*

Low Chee Keong*

Stephen Hung (Vice Chairman) (resigned on 1st April, 2002)

* Independent non-executive Directors
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D I R E C T O R S ( c o n t i n u e d )

In accordance with Bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Madam Shi Nan Sun will retire at the

forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, she offers herself for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Lam Kin Ngok, Peter, Mr. Lim Por Yen,

Madam U Po Chu and Mr. Chiu Wai will retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and,

being eligible, they offer themselves for re-election.

D I R E C T O R S ’ S E R V I C E C O N T R A C T S

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has an unexpired

service contract with the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employing

company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

D I R E C T O R S ’ I N T E R E S T S I N C O N T R A C T S

(a) Pursuant to an agreement entered into by Lai Sun Hotels (B.V.I.) Limited, Lai Sun Development

Company Limited (‘‘LSD’’), Grand Hill Holdings Limited, Lam Kin Ngok, Peter and Glynhill

International Limited (‘‘GIL’’) in respect of the acquisition of Heathfield Limited, LSD and Lam Kin

Ngok, Peter have given an indemnity to the Group against all liabilities, losses, proceedings and claims

arising from, or in consequence of, the litigation concerning the interest purchased.

(b) A hotel management contract was entered into between a subsidiary of the Group, Delta Hotels

Management (Thailand) Limited and P.S. Development Group of Companies Ltd. (‘‘PSD’’), an associate

of LSD. This contract sets out the management services provided to a hotel owned by PSD in Bangkok.

(c) A central marketing and promotional services agreement was entered into between a subsidiary of the

Group, Delta Asia Limited (‘‘DAL’’) and PSD. This agreement sets out the marketing and promotional

services provided to a hotel owned by PSD in Bangkok.

(d) A consultancy services agreement was entered into between Glynhill International Hotels Management

Sdn. Bhd. (‘‘GIH’’) and Pengkalen Holiday Resort Sdn Bhd (‘‘PHR’’), a company in which LSD has 10%

interest in it. Effective as from 1st November, 1999, GIH and its fellow subsidiaries, Furama Hotel

Enterprises Limited and Furama Hotels Resorts International Limited, act as consultants and advisors

in respect of the management and operation of a hotel owned by PHR in Malaysia.

(e) In connection with a hotel in the Philippines (the ‘‘Hotel’’) owned by Philippine Dream Company, Inc.

(‘‘PDC’’), an associate of LSD, a number of agreements were set up by PDC on 8th December, 1995 :

(1) A management agreement was entered into with Delta Hotels & Resorts Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.

(‘‘DHR’’), a subsidiary of DAL, for management services provided to the Hotel.

Under the agreement, DHR receives management fees based on a percentage of the gross

operating profit of the Hotel and the reimbursement of costs and expenses incurred in the

provision of such services. The management agreement had an initial term of five years and may

be extended for three additional terms of five years at DHR’s option. The management agreement

term has expired, but DHR is continuing to manage the Hotel on the same terms.
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D I R E C T O R S ’ I N T E R E S T S I N C O N T R A C T S ( c o n t i n u e d )

(2) An offshore agreement was entered into with DAL for marketing and advisory services provided

to the Hotel. DAL is entitled to service fees based on a percentage of the gross revenue and gross

room revenue of the Hotel and the reimbursement of costs and expenses incurred in the

provision of such services. The agreement has an initial term of ten years and may be extended at

DAL’s option for an additional term of ten years.

(f) A management agreement was entered into on 23rd April, 1998 between a subsidiary of the Group,

Glynhill Hotels and Resorts (Vietnam) Pte. Limited and Chains Caravelle Hotel Joint Venture Company

Limited (‘‘CCJV’’), which is a subsidiary of LSD. The agreement sets out the management services

provided to a hotel owned by CCJV in Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.

Mr. Lim Por Yen, Mr. Lam Kin Ngok, Peter, Mr. Lam Kin Ming and Madam U Po Chu were deemed to be

interested in the contracts mentioned in (a) to (f) by virtue of their interests described under the section

‘‘Directors’ interests in equity or debt securities’’ in page 18.

Mr. Victor Yang is a partner of Boughton Peterson Yang Anderson, a firm which provides legal services to the

Group and receives normal professional fees for such services.

In the opinion of the Directors, the above transactions arose in the ordinary course of business.

Except as disclosed above, under the heading ‘‘Practice Note 19 to the Listing Rules’’, and in the notes to the

financial statements, no Director had a material interest in any contract of significance to which the

Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

D I R E C T O R S ’ I N T E R E S T S I N C O M P E T I N G B U S I N E S S

During the year and upto the date of this report, the following Directors of the Company are considered to

have interests in the businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with

the businesses of the Group pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Lim Por Yen is a substantial shareholder and a director of Asia Television Limited (‘‘ATV’’), a company

incorporated in Hong Kong and whose principal activities are television broadcasting, programme

production and distribution of programme rights.

Mr. Lam Kin Ngok, Peter and Mr. Lam Kin Ming are also directors of ATV. The controlling interest in ATV is

held by independent third parties not connected with Mr. Lim Por Yen, Mr. Lam Kin Ngok, Peter and Mr.

Lam Kin Ming or any of their respective associates.

Mr. Lam Kin Ming is also a director and the controlling shareholder of Big Honor Investment Ltd. (‘‘Big

Honor’’) (a private company incorporated in Hong Kong in 1988). The principal activities of Big Honor are

the production and management of pop concerts and artistes.

Miss Shi Nan Sun is a director and substantial shareholder of Film Workshop Co. Ltd., the principal activity

of which is film production. The entire issued share capital of the above company is owned by Miss Shi and

her spouse. The above company has been established since 1984 and has produced 46 films.
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D I R E C T O R S ’ I N T E R E S T S I N C O M P E T I N G B U S I N E S S ( c o n t i n u e d )

As the Board is independent from the boards of the aforesaid companies and none of the above directors of

the Company can control the Board, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses independently of,

and at arm’s length from, the businesses of such companies.

P R A C T I C E N O T E 1 9 T O T H E L I S T I N G R U L E S

Advance to Furama Hotel Enterprises Limited (‘‘FHEL’’), a subsidiary of LSD

On 1st June, 2000, the Company and LSD entered into a reorganisation agreement (the ‘‘Reorganisation

Agreement’’) which contemplated the cancellation of the Development Agreement entered into in February

1999 and the reduction of the outstanding indebtedness owed by FHEL, to Golden Pool Enterprise Limited

(‘‘GPEL’’), a subsidiary of the Company.

In connection with the Reorganisation Agreement, LSD agreed to dispose of certain technology-oriented

assets to the Group and the Group agreed to transfer certain hotel and ancillary assets to LSD. The net

consideration of HK$399,960,000 on the disposal of assets made by both parties would be deducted from

the outstanding principal amount of the indebtedness due from FHEL.

As of 31st December, 2001, the indebtedness due from FHEL was approximately HK$1,506,945,000. GPEL

is entitled to share security items (B) and (C) below with LSD’s Exchangeable Bondholders and Convertible

Bondholders in respect of the indebtedness due from FHEL on a pro rata basis.

(A) LSD has guaranteed the repayment of the outstanding principal and accrued interest payable to GPEL.

(B) The indebtedness shall be secured by a limited recourse second charge created over the 6,500 shares in

Diamond String Limited, beneficially owned by LSD through Surearn Profits Limited, for repayment of

the outstanding principal amount plus accrued interest.

(C) LSD agreed to grant a negative pledge to its Exchangeable Bondholders, the Convertible Bondholders

and the Company, and has agreed not to create additional security over Causeway Bay Plaza 1,

Causeway Bay Plaza 2 and Cheung Sha Wan Plaza without the prior consent of LSD’s Exchangeable

Bondholders and Convertible Bondholders and the Company. LSD has also undertaken that, upon the

disposal of all or a substantial part of such properties by LSD or any of its subsidiaries prior to 31st

December, 2002 which results in a net consideration in excess of amounts secured by any first or prior

charge or right over the property sold and costs and expenses related to such disposal (‘‘Surplus’’),

70% of any Surplus would be paid on a pro rata basis based on, in the case of LSD’s Exchangeable

Bondholders and the Convertible Bondholders, the outstanding principal amounts owed plus the

accrued interest and redemption premium, and any investment parity payment due together with the

accrued interest, and in the case of the Company, the outstanding principal amount owed plus the

accrued interest, from time to time to LSD’s Exchangeable Bondholders, the Convertible Bondholders

and the Company.

The indebtedness due from FHEL is subject to interest at a rate of 5% per annum on the outstanding balance

and the repayment date will fall due on 31st December, 2002.
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B I O G R A P H I C A L D E T A I L S O F D I R E C T O R S

Executive Directors

Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent, Chairman, aged 41, first joined the Board as an independent non-executive

Director in August 1998 and was later appointed an executive Director and elected the Chairman of the

Company in December 1999. He has over 11 years’ experience in banking and corporate finance in Hong

Kong, China, Singapore and South-east Asia, having held various senior positions at different major

multinational banking institutions.

Mr. Lee Po On, Chief Executive Officer, aged 46, was appointed an executive Director and Chief Executive

Officer of the Company in March 2000. Mr. Lee joined the Lai Sun Group in November 1987 and held the

position of chief executive officer of Asia Television Limited during 1992 to 1996. He is a director of Lai Sun

Garment (International) Limited and is a Fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr. Lam Kin Ngok, Peter, aged 44, was appointed an executive Director and elected the Chairman of the

Company in October 1996. Mr. Lam ceased to be the Chairman in December 1999 but remained as an

executive Director of the Company. He is also a deputy chairman of Lai Sun Garment (International) Limited

(‘‘LSG’’), the chairman and president of Lai Sun Development Company Limited (‘‘LSD’’), a director of

Crocodile Garments Limited and the chairman of Lai Fung Holdings Limited. LSD is the controlling

shareholder of the Company and LSG is the controlling shareholder of LSD. Mr. Lam has extensive

experience in property development and investment business. He is a director of the Real Estate Developers

Association of Hong Kong, a member of the Hong Kong Hotel Owners Association and a council member of

the Anglo Hong Kong Trust. Mr. Lam is a son of Mr. Lim Por Yen and is the younger brother of Mr. Lam Kin

Ming.

Mr. Lim Por Yen, aged 87, is the founder of the Lai Sun Group. He is an executive Director of the Company

and was first appointed to the Board in October 1996. He is also the chairman and managing director of Lai

Sun Garment (International) Limited (‘‘LSG’’), the honorary chairman of Lai Sun Development Company

Limited (‘‘LSD’’) and the chairman of Crocodile Garments Limited. LSD is the controlling shareholder of the

Company and LSG is the controlling shareholder of LSD. Mr. Lim first became involved in the property

development and investment business in the mid-1950’s and has over 60 years’ experience in the garment

business. He is an honorary citizen of the city of Guangzhou, the city of Swatow, the city of Xiamen and the

city of Zhong Shan in the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Lim was also one of the Hong Kong Affairs

Advisers to the People’s Republic of China and is a founder member of The Better Hong Kong Foundation.

Mr. Liu Ngai Wing, aged 51, was appointed an executive Director of the Company in November 1998. He is

also an independent non-executive director of Hang Fung Gold Technology Limited, Climax International

Company Limited and Jackley Holdings Ltd., all being listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Liu holds a

Master Degree in Business Administration, a Master of Science Degree in Hotel and Tourism Management

and a Master of Science Degree in Global Business, and is an Associate Member of both the Hong Kong

Society of Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, and is also a Fellow of

the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Ms. Shi Nan Sun, aged 50, is an executive Director of the Company and was appointed to the Board in

September 2001. Ms. Shi has over 20 years’ experience in media-related industries and is currently the vice

chairman of the Media Asia group and a director of Film Workshop Co. Ltd.. She is also a board member of

the End Child Sexual Abuse Foundation and the vice president of Maryknoll Convent School Educational

Trust.
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B I O G R A P H I C A L D E T A I L S O F D I R E C T O R S ( c o n t i n u e d )

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kin Ming, aged 64, is a non-executive Director of the Company and was first appointed to the

Board in October 1996. Mr. Lam is also a deputy chairman of Lai Sun Garment (International) Limited

(‘‘LSG’’) and has been involved in the day-to-day management of the garment business since 1958. He is also

the deputy chairman of Crocodile Garments Limited and a director of Lai Sun Development Company

Limited (‘‘LSD’’) and Lai Fung Holdings Limited. LSD is the controlling shareholder of the Company and

LSG is the controlling shareholder of LSD. Mr. Lam is a son of Mr. Lim Por Yen and is the elder brother of

Mr. Lam Kin Ngok, Peter.

Miss Tam Wai Chu, Maria, G.B.S., C.B.E., J.P., aged 56, was appointed to the Board in October 2000. Miss

Tam is a member of the Hong Kong Bar Association having been called to the Bar at Gray’s Inn in England in

1972 and admitted into practice in Hong Kong in 1973. She has been closely involved in community and

public administration services in Hong Kong since 1979 and has served on an extensive number of public

and government bodies. Miss Tam is a member of the Basic Law Committee of Hong Kong Special

Administrative Region, and a deputy to the National People’s Congress. In addition to her other current

community duties, she is also a board member of the Airport Authority of Hong Kong and a board member

of the Urban Renewal Authority, and the president of Hong Kong Police Force Junior Police Officers’

Association. Miss Tam sits on the boards of a number of publicly-listed and private companies in Hong

Kong.

Madam U Po Chu, aged 77, is a non-executive Director of the Company and was first appointed to the Board

in October 1996. She is also a non-executive director of Lai Sun Garment (International) Limited (‘‘LSG’’),

Lai Sun Development Company Limited (‘‘LSD’’) and Crocodile Garments Limited. LSD is the controlling

shareholder of the Company and LSG is the controlling shareholder of LSD. Madam U has 57 years’

experience in the garment manufacturing business and has been involved in the printing business since the

mid-1960’s. In the early 1970’s, she started to expand the business to fabric bleaching and dyeing and also

became involved in property development and investment in the late 1980’s. She is Mr. Lim Por Yen’s wife.

Mr. Shiu Kai Wah, aged 69, is a non-executive Director of the Company and was first appointed to the Board

in October 1996. He is also a director of Lai Sun Garment (International) Limited (‘‘LSG’’), Lai Sun

Development Company Limited (‘‘LSD’’), Crocodile Garments Limited and Lai Fung Holdings Limited. LSD

is the controlling shareholder of the Company and LSG is the controlling shareholder of LSD. Mr. Shiu has

over 30 years’ experience in the management of the garment business.

Mr. Chiu Wai, aged 71, is a non-executive Director of the Company and was first appointed to the Board in

October 1996. Mr. Chiu is also a director of Lai Sun Garment (International) Limited (‘‘LSG’’), Lai Sun

Development Company Limited (‘‘LSD’’), Crocodile Garments Limited and Lai Fung Holdings Limited. LSD

is the controlling shareholder of the Company and LSG is the controlling shareholder of LSD. Mr. Chiu has

47 years’ experience in production management. He has been working for the Lai Sun Group’s garment

business since 1955.
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B I O G R A P H I C A L D E T A I L S O F D I R E C T O R S ( c o n t i n u e d )

Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Victor Yang, aged 56, first joined the Board in October 1996. He is a founding partner of the Canadian

law firm of Boughton Peterson Yang Anderson and is presently a member of the Law Societies of British

Columbia in Canada, Hong Kong and the United Kingdom. He has more than 27 years of legal experience.

Mr. Alfred Donald Yap, J.P., aged 63, is an independent non-executive Director of the Company and was

first appointed to the Board in December 1996. Mr. Yap is presently a consultant of Donald Yap, Cheng &

Kong. Mr. Yap is a former president of The Law Society of Hong Kong and past president of The Law

Association for Asia and the Pacific (LAWASIA). Mr. Yap is also a former Hong Kong Affairs Adviser

appointed by the Chinese Government.

Mr. Low Chee Keong, aged 41, was appointed an independent non-executive Director of the Company in

August 1999. Mr. Low has been a member of the Chartered Institute of Marketing of the United Kingdom

since 1986. He has over 10 years’ experience in the property development and maintenance industry in

Singapore, and is currently the managing director of Hong Siong Holding Pte Ltd..

S H A R E O P T I O N S C H E M E

The Company operates an employee share option scheme (the ‘‘Share Option Scheme’’) for the purpose of

providing incentives and rewards to eligible employees who contribute to the success of the Group’s

operations. Eligible employees of the Share Option Scheme include executive Directors and other employees

of the Company or any subsidiary. The Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 25th

November, 1996 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for a period of 10 years.

The maximum number of shares of the Company (the ‘‘Shares’’) in respect of which options may be granted

(together with options exercised and options then outstanding) under the Share Option Scheme will not,

when aggregated with any Shares subject to any other schemes, exceed such number of Shares as shall

represent 10% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time excluding any Shares issued

pursuant to the Share Option Scheme. Excluding the number of Shares issued and to be issued upon

exercise of the outstanding options granted under the Share Option Scheme, the total number of Shares

available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is 33,513,491 Shares, representing approximately 5.87%

of the Company’s issued share capital as at the date of the annual report.

No employee shall be granted an option which, if exercised in full, would result in such employee becoming

entitled to subscribe for such number of Shares as when aggregated with the total number of Shares already

issued under all the options previously granted to him which have been exercised, and, issuable under all

the options previously granted to him which are for the time being subsisting and unexercised, would

exceed 25% of the aggregate number of Shares for the time being issued and issuable under the Share

Option Scheme.

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance by the employee concerned for a period

of 28 days from the date upon which it is made. An option shall be deemed to have been granted and

accepted and to have taken effect when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the option duly signed

by the grantee together with a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$10.00 by way of consideration for

the grant thereof is received by the Company. An option granted under the Share Option Scheme may be

exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and the conditions of grant during the

two-year period commencing on the expiry of six months after the date on which the option is accepted and

expiring on the last day of the two-year period.
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S H A R E O P T I O N S C H E M E ( c o n t i n u e d )

The subscription price shall be a price notified by the Board of the Company to an employee being (a) not

less than 80% of the average of the closing prices of the Shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited (the ‘‘Stock Exchange’’) as stated in the Stock Exchange’s quotation sheets for the 5 trading days

immediately preceding the offer date or (b) the nominal value of the Shares, whichever is the higher.

The implementation of relevant terms of the Share Option Scheme will be adjusted to comply with the new

requirements set out in Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The following share options were outstanding under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31st

December, 2001 :

No. of Options Subscription Price

Name

Date of

Grant

At 01/01/

2001*

Lapsed

During the

Year**

At 31/12/

2001** Option Period

At Grant

Date Adjusted**

Directors

Lien Jown Jing, Vincent 12/02/2000 2,000,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 13/08/2000 —

12/08/2002***

HK$0.610

per share

HK$2.655

per share

Stephen Hung 12/02/2000 3,000,000 2,250,000 2,250,000 13/08/2000 —

12/08/2002***

HK$0.610

per share

HK$2.655

per share

Lee Po On 04/03/2000 4,000,000 Nil 6,000,000 05/09/2000 —

04/09/2002

HK$1.400

per share

HK$6.094

per share

Lam Kin Ngok, Peter 12/02/2000 4,000,000 Nil 6,000,000 13/08/2000 —

12/08/2002

HK$0.610

per share

HK$2.655

per share

04/03/2000 3,000,000 Nil 4,500,000 05/09/2000 —

04/09/2002

HK$1.400

per share

HK$6.094

per share

Liu Ngai Wing 22/02/1999 1,200,000 1,800,000 Nil 23/08/1999 —

22/08/2001

HK$0.500

per share

Not

applicable

Victor Yang 12/02/2000 400,000 300,000 300,000 13/08/2000 —

12/08/2002***

HK$0.610

per share

HK$2.655

per share

04/03/2000 2,000,000 Nil 3,000,000 05/09/2000 —

04/09/2002

HK$1.400

per share

HK$6.094

per share

19,600,000 5,850,000 23,550,000

Other employees

12/02/2000 2,000,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 13/08/2000 —

12/08/2002***

HK$0.610

per share

HK$2.655

per share

28/04/2000 600,000 450,000 450,000 29/10/2000 —

28/10/2002***

HK$0.283

per share

HK$1.232

per share

2,600,000 1,950,000 1,950,000

22,200,000 7,800,000 25,500,000

* As adjusted by the share consolidation which took effect on 29th December, 2000

** As adjusted by the share consolidation and the rights issue of the Company

*** in 4 six-month tranches
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D I R E C T O R S ’ I N T E R E S T S I N E Q U I T Y O R D E B T S E C U R I T I E S

As at 31st December, 2001, the interests of the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the

equity or debt securities of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the

Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance) (the ‘‘SDI Ordinance’’) as recorded in the register required to

be kept pursuant to Section 29 of the SDI Ordinance or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Code for Securities Transactions by Directors adopted by the Company (the

‘‘Code’’) were as follows:

The Company

Number of Shares Held

Name

Personal

Interests

Family

Interests

Corporate

Interests

Other

Interests Total

Lien Jown Jing,

Vincent

931,800 Nil Nil 1,500,000

(under share options)

931,800

Stephen Hung Nil Nil Nil 2,250,000

(under share options)

Nil

Lee Po On Nil Nil Nil 6,000,000

(under share options)

Nil

Lam Kin Ngok, Peter 3,426,567 Nil Nil 10,500,000

(under share options)

3,426,567

Lim Por Yen 1,656,867 Nil 285,512,791

(Note)

Nil 287,169,658

Liu Ngai Wing 3,101,215 Nil Nil Nil 3,101,215

U Po Chu 112,500 Nil Nil Nil 112,500

Victor Yang Nil Nil Nil 3,300,000

(under share options)

Nil

Note: Lai Sun Development Company Limited (‘‘LSD’’) and its wholly-owned subsidiaries beneficially owned 285,512,791 shares in the

Company. Lai Sun Garment (International) Limited (‘‘LSG’’) and its wholly-owned subsidiary held an interest of approximately

42.25% in the issued ordinary share capital of LSD. Mr. Lim Por Yen (and his associates) held an interest of approximately 34.30%

in the issued share capital of LSG. Mr. Lim Por Yen, Mr. Lam Kin Ngok, Peter, Mr. Lam Kin Ming, Madam U Po Chu and Madam Lai

Yuen Fong were directors of LSG and held in aggregate an interest of approximately 42% in the issued share capital of LSG.

In addition to the above, one Director held a non-beneficial interest in the share capital of one subsidiary of

the Company as nominee shareholder for the purpose of complying with the statutory requirement for a

minimum number of shareholders for such subsidiary.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December, 2001, none of the Directors or the chief executive of the

Company or their respective associates had any interests in the equity or debt securities of the Company or

any of its associated corporations which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to Section 28 of the SDI Ordinance or the Code (including interests which they were

deemed or taken to have under Section 31 of or Part I of the Schedule to the SDI Ordinance) or which were

required, pursuant to Section 29 of the SDI Ordinance, to be entered in the register referred to therein.
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A R R A N G E M E N T S T O P U R C H A S E S E C U R I T I E S A N D D E B E N T U R E S

Except for the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, any

of its subsidiaries, or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company

to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of the equity or debt securities of the Company or any other

body corporate.

S U B S T A N T I A L S H A R E H O L D E R S

As at 31st December, 2001, the following persons were interested or deemed to be interested in 10% or

more of the nominal value of the total issued share capital of the Company as recorded in the register

required to be kept under Section 16(1) of the SDI Ordinance:

Number of Shares Held

Lai Sun Development Company Limited (‘‘LSD’’) 285,512,791

Lai Sun Garment (International) Limited (‘‘LSG’’) 285,512,791

(Note 1)

Lim Por Yen 287,282,158

(Note 2)

Notes:

1. These interests in the Company were held by LSD and its subsidiaries. LSG was deemed to be interested in the 285,512,791 shares

in the Company held by LSD and its subsidiaries by virtue of LSG and its wholly-owned subsidiary holding collectively an interest

of approximately 42.25% in the issued ordinary share capital of LSD.

2. Mr. Lim Por Yen (and his associates) held an interest of approximately 34.30% in the issued share capital of LSG. The above interest

in the Company also includes Mr. Lim Por Yen’s personal and family interests.

Mr. Lim Por Yen, Mr. Lam Kin Ngok, Peter, Madam U Po Chu and Madam Lai Yuen Fong were directors of LSG and held in

aggregate an interest of approximately 42% in the issued share capital of LSG.

Save for the interests disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other person being interested in

10% or more of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31st December, 2001.

P U R C H A S E , S A L E O R R E D E M P T I O N O F L I S T E D S E C U R I T I E S

During the year ended 31st December, 2001, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or

any of its subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities.

P R E - E M P T I V E R I G H T S

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which

would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

P R I O R Y E A R A D J U S T M E N T

Details of the prior year adjustment of the Group arising from the change of accounting policy as a result of

the adoption of new Hong Kong Statements of Standard Accounting Practice, are set out in note 4 to the

financial statements.

eSUN HOLDINGS ANNUAL REPORT 2001

19

Report of the Directors



F I X E D A S S E T S

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the financial

statements.

S H A R E C A P I T A L A N D S H A R E O P T I O N S

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share options during the year, together with the

reasons therefor, are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

R E S E R V E S

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in note 33 to

the financial statements.

D I S T R I B U T A B L E R E S E R V E S

As at 31st December, 2001, the Company had no reserves available for cash distribution and/or distribution

in specie, calculated in accordance with Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

M A J O R C U S T O M E R S A N D S U P P L I E R S

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for 85% of the total sales for

the year and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to 54%. Purchases from the Group’s

five largest suppliers accounted for 79% of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the largest

supplier included therein amounted to 35%.

Other than Mr. Lim Por Yen who owns an approximate 16% equity interest in one of the major suppliers,

none of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any shareholders (who, to the best

knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial

interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

S U M M A R Y O F F I N A N C I A L I N F O R M A T I O N

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as

extracted from the audited financial statements and adjusted as appropriate, is set out below. The amounts

for the financial years ended 31st December 1997 and 31st December, 2000, respectively, have been

restated for the effects of the retrospective change in accounting polices affecting dividends and goodwill, as

detailed in notes 2 and 4 to the financial statements.

Results

Year ended 31st December,
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(Restated)

TURNOVER 84,376 206,948 374,694 369,221 405,094

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (179,423) (1,114,292) (1,322,202) (61,131) 146,347
Tax (2,130) (14,875) (4,649) (13,703) (16,109)

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE

MINORITY INTERESTS (181,553) (1,129,167) (1,326,851) (74,834) 130,238
Minority interests (135) 462 442,100 25,032 (20,090)

NET PROFIT/(LOSS)

ATTRIBUTABLE TO

SHAREHOLDERS (181,688) (1,128,705) (884,751) (49,802) 110,148
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S U M M A R Y O F F I N A N C I A L I N F O R M A T I O N ( c o n t i n u e d )

Assets, Liabilities and Minority Interests

Year ended 31st December,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(Restated)

Fixed assets 141,975 95,089 1,107,843 2,580,724 2,195,057

Investment properties — — — 483,000 479,919

Properties under development — — — — 563,230

Long term investments 9,682 34,553 85,001 — —

Goodwill — — — 61,272 86,874

Interest in a jointly-controlled entity 6,006 — — — —

Interests in associates 85,983 52,537 81,062 1,191,398 1,533,539

Long term deposits — — — 10,000 83,622

Due from Furama Hotel Enterprises

Limited 1,500,040 1,500,040 — — —

Deposits paid to Furama Hotel

Enterprises Limited — — 1,900,000 — —

Due from Lai Sun Development

Company Limited — — — 382,377 382,690

Deferred tax assets 661 1,360 1,397 7,873 2,470

Long term receivables — — 92,832 31,091 —

Current assets 219,791 284,912 496,539 863,840 569,431

TOTAL ASSETS 1,964,138 1,968,491 3,764,674 5,611,575 5,896,832

Current liabilities (72,385) (57,016) (195,487) (723,713) (404,356)

Long term bank loans and other

borrowings (107) (103) (232,829) (305,027) (704,998)

TOTAL LIABILITIES (72,492) (57,119) (428,316) (1,028,740) (1,109,354)

MINORITY INTERESTS (319) (221) (338,754) (743,341) (778,874)

1,891,327 1,911,151 2,997,604 3,839,494 4,008,604

C O D E O F B E S T P R A C T I C E

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the Code of Best Practice as set out in

Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. The non-executive

Directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s Annual

General Meeting in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.
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C O D E O F B E S T P R A C T I C E ( c o n t i n u e d )

The Company has established an audit committee in accordance with paragraph 14 of the Code of Best

Practice. The audit committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Alfred Donald Yap

and Mr. Low Chee Keong as at the report date.

A U D I T O R S

Ernst & Young retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and a resolution for their

reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

On Behalf of the Board

Lien Jown Jing, Vincent

Chairman

Hong Kong

19th April, 2002
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To the members

eSun Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 24 to 80 which have been prepared in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

R E S P E C T I V E R E S P O N S I B I L I T I E S O F D I R E C T O R S A N D A U D I T O R S

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and

fair view. In preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate

accounting policies are selected and applied consistently. It is our responsibility to form an independent

opinion, based on our audit, on those statements and to report our opinion to you.

B A S I S O F O P I N I O N

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong

Society of Accountants. An audit includes an examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant

estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of

whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s and the Group’s circumstances,

consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we

considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to

whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also

evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements. We believe that

our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

O P I N I O N

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of

the Group as at 31st December, 2001 and of the loss and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended

and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

19th April, 2002
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2001 2000

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

(Restated)

TURNOVER

Continuing operations 84,376 50,012

Discontinued operations 5 — 156,936

8 84,376 206,948

Cost of sales (94,644) (124,694)

Gross profit/(loss) (10,268) 82,254

Other revenue 5, 8 86,577 132,000

Marketing expenses (4,516) (8,230)

Administrative expenses (103,999) (102,157)

Other operating expenses, net (38,214) (51,523)

Gain on disposal of interests in associates 3,855 11,612

Gain/(loss) on disposal of short term investments (65,853) 15,389

Impairment of goodwill arising on acquisition of associates

and a jointly-controlled entity (32,990) —

Unrealised holding loss on short term investments — (351,206)

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries — 23,596

Loss on disposal of a long term investment — (20,000)

Prior year adjustment:

Impairment of goodwill arising on acquisition of associates 4 — (595,610)

Impairment of goodwill arising on acquisition of

subsidiaries 4 — (227,445)

LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 5, 9 (165,408) (1,091,320)

Finance costs 10 (4,141) (15,819)

Share of profits and losses of:

Associates (7,216) (7,153)

A jointly-controlled entity (2,658) —

LOSS BEFORE TAX (179,423) (1,114,292)

Tax 12 (2,130) (14,875)

LOSS BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTS (181,553) (1,129,167)

Minority interests (135) 462

NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 13, 33 (181,688) (1,128,705)

LOSS PER SHARE — BASIC 14 32.36 cents 304.73 cents

Year ended 31st December, 2001
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2001 2000

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

(Restated)

Exchange realignments on translation of the financial

statements of foreign subsidiaries and associates, net 33 (1,356) 836

Net gains/(losses) not recognised in the profit and loss account (1,356) 836

Net loss for the year attributable to shareholders:

Current year/prior year (as previously reported) (181,688) (305,650)

Effect of retrospective changes in accounting policy 4 — (823,055)

(181,688) (1,128,705)

Total recognised gains and losses (183,044) (1,127,869)

In addition to the gains and losses detailed above, certain

losses arose since 31st December, 2000 as a result of a prior

year adjustment arising from the changes in accounting

policies summarised in note 4 to the financial statements,

details of which are set out as follows:

For the year ended 31st December, 2001, as reported above (183,044)

Recognised losses arising from a prior year adjustment,

relating to the year ended 31st December, 2000 4 (823,055)

Total recognised losses arising since the last annual report (1,006,099)

Year ended 31st December, 2001
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2001 2000

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Fixed assets 15 141,975 95,089

Long term investments 16 9,682 34,553

Interest in a jointly-controlled entity 18 6,006 —

Interests in associates 19 85,983 52,537

Due from Furama Hotel Enterprises Limited 20 1,500,040 1,500,040

Deferred tax assets 21 661 1,360

1,744,347 1,683,579

CURRENT ASSETS

Short term investments 22 1,170 162,970

Due from a fellow subsidiary 23 — 18,905

Due from a related company 23 6,905 —

Self-produced and purchased programmes 39,895 —

Stocks 24 — 392

Loan receivable 25 39,134 —

Debtors and deposits 26 76,546 49,540

Cash held in trust 27 2,276 2,276

Cash and cash equivalents 28 53,865 50,829

219,791 284,912

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Creditors and accruals 29 29,961 38,809

Tax payable 17,397 18,188

Finance lease payables 30 27 19

Interest-bearing bank loans 31 25,000 —

72,385 57,016

NET CURRENT ASSETS 147,406 227,896

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES — page 27 1,891,753 1,911,475

31st December, 2001
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2001 2000

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES — page 26 1,891,753 1,911,475

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Finance lease payables 30 (107) (103)

MINORITY INTERESTS (319) (221)

1,891,327 1,911,151

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Issued capital 32 285,592 188,528

Reserves 33 1,605,735 1,722,623

1,891,327 1,911,151

Lien Jown Jing, Vincent Lee Po On

Director Director

31st December, 2001
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2001 2000

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 34(a) (239,284) (116,835)

RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING OF

FINANCE

Interest received 92,675 127,808

Interest paid on bank loans, overdrafts and other

borrowings (1,964) (13,720)

Dividend received from a long term investment — 1,000

Net cash inflow from returns on investments and servicing of

finance 90,711 115,088

TAX

Overseas taxes paid (421) (277)

NET CASH OUTFLOW BEFORE INVESTING AND

FINANCING ACTIVITIES — page 29 (148,994) (2,024)

Year ended 31st December, 2001
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2001 2000

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

NET CASH OUTFLOW BEFORE INVESTING AND

FINANCING ACTIVITIES — page 28 (148,994) (2,024)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of fixed assets (60,153) (18,689)

Acquisition of subsidiaries 34(c) — 4,639

Acquisition of a jointly-controlled entity (2,009) —

Acquisition of associates (8,125) (344,366)

Acquisition of additional interests in an associate (31,500) —

Acquisition of long term investments (5,000) (9,353)

Acquisition of short term investments (9,900) (32,405)

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 4,198 1,131

Disposal of subsidiaries 34(d) — (66,715)

Disposal of interests in associates 17,134 2,127

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries in 1999 — 155,846

Proceeds from disposal of associates in 1998 — 36,553

Proceeds from disposal of short term investments 105,847 47,464

Refund of deposits paid for acquisition of film rights and

domain name — 61,000

Withdrawal/(investment) in time deposits with original

maturity of not less than three months when acquired 1,740 (1,740)

Advances to associates (673) (3,793)

Loan to a jointly-controlled entity (8,285) —

Loans to associates (32,095) (6,626)

Legal and professional fees in respect of the group

reorganisation — (6,646)

Net cash outflow from investing activities (28,821) (181,573)

NET CASH OUTFLOW BEFORE FINANCING

ACTIVITIES — page 30 (177,815) (183,597)
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2001 2000

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

NET CASH OUTFLOW BEFORE FINANCING

ACTIVITIES — page 29 (177,815) (183,597)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 34(b)

Proceeds from issue of share capital 160,249 2,000

Share issue expenses (2,629) —

New bank loans 93,000 8,212

Repayment of bank loans (68,000) (47,381)

Capital element of finance lease rental payments (29) (16)

Shareholders’ loans advanced by minority shareholders — 16,530

Repayment to minority shareholders — (53)

Decrease in cash held in trust — 12,806

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities 182,591 (7,902)

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS 4,776 (191,499)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 49,089 240,588

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 53,865 49,089

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents 28 53,865 50,829

Time deposits with original maturity of not less than three

months when acquired — (1,740)

53,865 49,089

Year ended 31st December, 2001
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2001 2000

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Interests in subsidiaries 17 1,831,747 2,613,482

Balances with associates 19 30,256 —

1,862,003 2,613,482

CURRENT ASSETS

Short term investments 22 443 283

Debtors and deposits 26 31,504 5,237

Cash and cash equivalents 28 1,118 23,807

33,065 29,327

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Creditors and accruals 29 1,787 4,138

Tax payable 1,300 —

Interest-bearing bank loans 31 25,000 —

28,087 4,138

NET CURRENT ASSETS 4,978 25,189

1,866,981 2,638,671

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Issued capital 32 285,592 188,528

Reserves 33 1,581,389 2,450,143

1,866,981 2,638,671

Lien Jown Jing, Vincent Lee Po On

Director Director

31st December, 2001
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1. C O R P O R A T E I N F O R M A T I O N

The registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal activities:

. development and operation of, and investment in media, entertainment, Internet and technology-

oriented businesses;

. provision of advertising agency services; and

. management of hotel operations.

In the opinion of the directors, during the year up to 4th April, 2001, the ultimate holding company is Lai

Sun Development Company Limited (‘‘LSD’’) which is incorporated and listed in Hong Kong. On 4th April,

2001, LSD ceased to hold more than 50% equity interest in the Company and ceased to have control over

the Company. As a result, the Company became an associate of LSD and LSD ceased to be the Company’s

ultimate holding company since then.

2. I M P A C T O F N E W A N D R E V I S E D S T A T E M E N T S O F S T A N D A R D

A C C O U N T I N G P R A C T I C E ( ‘ ‘ S S A P s ’ ’ )

The following recently-issued and revised SSAPs and related Interpretations are effective for the first time for

the current year’s financial statements:

. SSAP 9 (Revised): ‘‘Events after the balance sheet date’’

. SSAP 14 (Revised): ‘‘Leases’’

. SSAP 18 (Revised): ‘‘Revenue’’

. SSAP 26 : ‘‘Segment reporting’’

. SSAP 28 : ‘‘Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets’’

. SSAP 29 : ‘‘Intangible assets’’

. SSAP 30 : ‘‘Business combinations’’

. SSAP 31 : ‘‘Impairment of assets’’

. SSAP 32 : ‘‘Consolidated financial statements and accounting for investments in subsidiaries’’

. Interpretation 12 : ‘‘Business combinations — subsequent adjustment of fair values and goodwill

initially reported’’

. Interpretation 13 : ‘‘Goodwill — continuing requirements for goodwill and negative goodwill

previously eliminated against/credited to reserves’’

31st December, 2001
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2. I M P A C T O F N E W A N D R E V I S E D S T A T E M E N T S O F S T A N D A R D

A C C O U N T I N G P R A C T I C E ( ‘ ‘ S S A P s ’ ’ ) ( c o n t i n u e d )

These SSAPs prescribe new accounting measurement and disclosure practices. The major effects on the

Group’s accounting policies and on the amounts disclosed in these financial statements of those SSAPs and

Interpretations which have had a significant effect on the financial statements, are summarised as follows:

SSAP 14 (Revised) prescribes the basis for lessor and lessee accounting for finance and operating leases, and

the required disclosures in respect thereof. Certain amendments have been made to the previous accounting

measurement treatments, which may be accounted for retrospectively or prospectively, in accordance with

the requirements of the SSAP. The revised SSAP requirements have not had a material effect on the amounts

previously recorded in the financial statements, therefore no prior year adjustment has been required. The

disclosure changes under this SSAP have resulted in changes to the detailed information disclosed for

finance leases and operating leases, which are further detailed in notes 30 and 36 to the financial statements.

SSAP 26 prescribes the principles to be applied for reporting financial information by segment. It requires

that management assesses whether the Group’s predominant risks or returns are based on business segments

or geographical segments and determines one of these bases to be the primary segment information

reporting format, with the other as the secondary segment information reporting format. The impact of this

SSAP is the inclusion of significant additional segment reporting disclosures which are set out in note 6 to

the financial statements.

SSAP 30 prescribes the accounting treatment for business combinations, including the determination of the

date of acquisition, the method for determining the fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired, and the

treatment of goodwill or negative goodwill arising on acquisition. The SSAP requires the disclosure of

goodwill and negative goodwill in the non-current assets section of the consolidated balance sheet. It

requires that goodwill is amortised to the consolidated profit and loss account over its estimated useful life.

Negative goodwill is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account depending on the circumstances

from which it arose, as further described in the accounting policy for negative goodwill disclosed in note 3

to the financial statements. Interpretation 13 prescribes the application of SSAP 30 to goodwill arising from

acquisitions in previous years which remains eliminated against consolidated reserves. The adoption of the

SSAP and Interpretation has resulted in a prior year adjustment, further details of which are included in note

4 to the financial statements. The required new additional disclosures are also included in notes 18, 19 and

33 to the financial statements.

SSAP 31 prescribes the recognition and measurement criteria for impairments of assets. The SSAP is

required to be applied prospectively and therefore, has had no effect on amounts previously reported in

prior year financial statements.
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3. S U M M A R Y O F S I G N I F I C A N T A C C O U N T I N G P O L I C I E S

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Statements of Standard

Accounting Practice, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical

cost convention, except for the periodic remeasurement of certain equity investments, as further explained

below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries

for the year ended 31st December, 2001. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year

are consolidated from or to their effective dates of acquisition or disposal, respectively. All significant

intercompany transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company whose financial and operating policies the Company controls, directly or

indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Joint venture companies

A joint venture company is a company set up by contractual arrangement, whereby the Group and other

parties undertake an economic activity. The joint venture company operates as a separate entity in which the

Group and the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture

parties, the duration of the joint venture and the basis on which the assets are to be realised upon its

dissolution. The profits and losses from the joint venture company’s operations and any distributions of

surplus assets are shared by the venturers, either in proportion to their respective capital contributions, or in

accordance with the terms of the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture company is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Company has unilateral control over the joint venture company;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Company does not have unilateral control, but has joint control over

the joint venture company;

(c) an associate, if the Company does not have unilateral or joint control, but holds generally not less than

20% of the joint venture company’s registered capital and is in a position to exercise significant

influence over the joint venture company; or

(d) a long term investment, if the Company holds less than 20% of the joint venture company’s registered

capital and has neither joint control of, nor is in a position to exercise significant influence over, the

joint venture company.
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3. S U M M A R Y O F S I G N I F I C A N T A C C O U N T I N G P O L I C I E S ( c o n t i n u e d )

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture company which is subject to joint control, resulting in none of

the participating parties having unilateral control over the economic activity of the jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of jointly-controlled entities is included in the

consolidated profit and loss account and consolidated reserves, respectively. The Group’s interests in

jointly-controlled entities are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of net assets

under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of

jointly-controlled entities is included as part of the Group’s interests in jointly-controlled entities.

Associates

An associate is a company, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a

long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a position

to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of associates is included in the consolidated

profit and loss account and consolidated reserves, respectively. The Group’s interests in associates are stated

in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,

less any impairment losses. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates, which was not previously

eliminated against reserves, is included as part of the Group’s interests in associates.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s profit and loss account to the extent of dividends

received and receivable. The Company’s interests in associates are treated as non-current assets and are

stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates and jointly-controlled entities represents the

excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s share of the fair values of the identifiable assets and

liabilities acquired as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the consolidated balance sheet as an asset and amortised on

the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 10 to 20 years. In the case of associates and jointly-

controlled entities, any unamortised goodwill is included in the carrying amount thereof, rather than as a

separately identified asset on the consolidated balance sheet.

In prior years, goodwill arising on acquisitions was eliminated against consolidated reserves in the year of

acquisition. The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of SSAP 30 that permits goodwill on

acquisitions which occurred prior to 1st January, 2001, to remain eliminated against consolidated reserves.

Goodwill on subsequent acquisitions is treated according to the new accounting policy above.
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3. S U M M A R Y O F S I G N I F I C A N T A C C O U N T I N G P O L I C I E S ( c o n t i n u e d )

Goodwill (continued)

On disposal of subsidiaries, associates or jointly-controlled entities, the gain or loss on disposal is calculated

by reference to the net assets at the date of disposal, including the attributable amount of goodwill which

remains unamortised and any relevant reserves, as appropriate. Any attributable goodwill previously

eliminated against consolidated reserves at the time of acquisition is written back and included in the

calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.

The carrying amount of goodwill, including goodwill remaining eliminated against consolidated reserves, is

reviewed annually and written down for impairment when it is considered necessary. A previously

recognised impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed unless the impairment loss was caused by a specific

external event of an exceptional nature that was not expected to recur, and subsequent external events have

occurred which have reversed the effect of that event.

Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates and jointly-controlled entities

represents the excess of the Group’s share of the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired

as at the date of acquisition, over the cost of the acquisition.

To the extent that negative goodwill relates to expectations of future losses and expenses that are identified

in the acquisition plan and that can be measured reliably, but which do not represent identifiable liabilities

as at the date of acquisition, that portion of negative goodwill is recognised as income in the consolidated

profit and loss account when the future losses and expenses are recognised.

To the extent that negative goodwill does not relate to identifiable expected future losses and expenses as at

the date of acquisition, negative goodwill is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account on a

systematic basis over the remaining average useful life of the acquired depreciable/amortisable assets. The

amount of any negative goodwill in excess of the fair values of the acquired non-monetary assets is

recognised as income immediately.

In the case of associates and jointly-controlled entities, any negative goodwill not yet recognised in the

consolidated profit and loss account is included in the carrying amount thereof, rather than as a separately

identified item on the consolidated balance sheet.

On disposal of subsidiaries, associates or jointly-controlled entities, the gain or loss on disposal is calculated

by reference to the net assets at the date of disposal, including the attributable amount of negative goodwill

which has not been recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account and any relevant reserves as

appropriate. Any attributable negative goodwill previously credited to the contributed surplus at the time of

acquisition is written back and included in the calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.
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3. S U M M A R Y O F S I G N I F I C A N T A C C O U N T I N G P O L I C I E S ( c o n t i n u e d )

Impairment of assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date of whether there is any indication of impairment of any

asset, or whether there is any indication that an impairment loss previously recognised for an asset in prior

years may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the asset’s value in use or

its net selling price.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An

impairment loss is charged to the profit and loss account in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is

carried at a revalued amount, when the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to

determine the recoverable amount of an asset, however not to an amount higher than the carrying amount

that would have been determined (net of depreciation/amortisation), had no impairment loss been

recognised for the asset in prior years.

A reversal of an impairment loss is credited to the profit and loss account in the period in which it arises,

unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, when the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in

accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets, other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any

impairment losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of

bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the

fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, is normally

charged to the profit and loss account in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be

clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits

expected to be obtained from the use of the fixed asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of

that asset.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each asset over its estimated

useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land Over the unexpired lease terms

Buildings 2.5% – 5.0%

Leasehold improvements Over the terms of the leases

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5.0% – 20.0%

Broadcast operations and engineering equipment 10.0%

Motor vehicles 10.0% – 20.0%

Computers 10.0% – 20.0%
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3. S U M M A R Y O F S I G N I F I C A N T A C C O U N T I N G P O L I C I E S ( c o n t i n u e d )

Fixed assets and depreciation (continued)

Construction in progress represents a building under construction and is stated at cost less any impairment

losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises direct costs of construction and interest charges on related

borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the

appropriate category of fixed assets when completed and ready for use.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed asset recognised in the profit and loss account is the

difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant assets.

Long term investments

Long term investments comprise non-trading investments in unlisted equity securities intended to be held

for an identified long term purpose. Unlisted securities are stated at cost less any impairment losses, on an

individual investment basis.

When such impairments in values have occurred, the carrying amounts of the securities are reduced to their

fair values, as estimated by the directors, and the amounts of the impairments are charged to the profit and

loss account for the period in which they arise. Where the circumstances and events which led to the

impairments in values cease to exist and there is persuasive evidence that the new circumstances and events

will persist for the foreseeable future, the amount of the impairments previously charged is credited to the

profit and loss account to the extent of the amount previously charged.

Short term investments

Short term investments are investments in equity securities held for trading purposes. Listed securities are

stated at their fair values on the basis of their quoted market prices at the balance sheet date on an individual

investment basis. Unlisted securities are stated at their estimated fair values, as determined by the directors,

on an individual investment basis. The gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of a security are

credited or charged to the profit and loss account for the period in which they arise.

Self-produced programmes

Self-produced programmes are stated at cost less any impairment losses. Cost comprises direct expenditure

and an attributed portion of direct production overheads. The relevant portion of the cost of self-produced

programmes is charged to the profit and loss account in accordance with the number of episodes broadcast

in the financial year.

Purchased programme rights

Purchased programme rights, which represent entitlements under contracts to receive and broadcast

programmes, are stated at cost less any impairment losses. The cost of purchased programme rights is

charged to the profit and loss account upon the first broadcasting of the programmes.
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3. S U M M A R Y O F S I G N I F I C A N T A C C O U N T I N G P O L I C I E S ( c o n t i n u e d )

Stocks

Stocks were stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, after making due allowances for obsolete or

slow-moving items. Cost for food, beverages, cutlery, linen and supplies was determined on the first-in,

first-out basis. Net realisable value was determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds less estimated

selling expenses.

Leased assets

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than

legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset

is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation,

excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance

leases are included in fixed assets and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated

useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to the profit and loss account so as to

provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are

accounted for as operating leases. Rentals applicable to such operating leases are charged to the profit and

loss account on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and when

revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the operation of hotels and restaurants, when the services are provided;

(b) hotel, restaurant and other management fee income, in the period in which such management services

are rendered;

(c) advertising agency fee income, in the period in which such advertising services are rendered;

(d) from the sale of short term investments, on the transaction date when the relevant contract is entered

into;

(e) interest income, on a time proportion basis taking into account the principal outstanding and the

effective interest rate applicable; and

(f) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, ie,

assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are

capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the

assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary

investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs capitalised.
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3. S U M M A R Y O F S I G N I F I C A N T A C C O U N T I N G P O L I C I E S ( c o n t i n u e d )

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the

‘‘Scheme’’) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible

to participate in the Scheme. The Scheme has operated since 1st December, 2000. Contributions are made

based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the profit and loss account as they

become payable in accordance with the rules of the Scheme. The assets of the Scheme are held separately

from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest

fully with the employees when contributed into the Scheme.

Prior to the Scheme becoming effective, the Group operated a defined contribution retirement benefits

scheme (the ‘‘prior scheme’’) for its employees who were eligible and had elected to participate in the

scheme. This prior scheme operated in a similar way to the Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits

scheme, except that when an employee left the prior scheme before his/her interest in the employer

contributions vested fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the Group were reduced by the relevant

amount of forfeited contributions. With effect from 1st December, 2000, the prior scheme was terminated.

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the applicable rates of exchange ruling at the transaction

dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are

translated at the applicable rates of exchange ruling at that date. Exchange differences are dealt with in the

profit and loss account.

On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas subsidiaries and associates are translated to Hong

Kong dollars at the applicable rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting translation

differences are dealt with as movements in reserves.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all significant timing differences to the extent it is

probable that the liability will crystallise in the foreseeable future. A deferred tax asset is not recognised until

its realisation is assured beyond reasonable doubt.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other

party, or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.

Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common significant

influence. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash equivalents represent short term highly liquid

investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which were within three months

of maturity when acquired, less advances from banks repayable within three months from the date of the

advance. For the purpose of balance sheet classification, cash equivalents represent assets similar in nature

to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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4. P R I O R Y E A R A D J U S T M E N T

Due to the adoption of SSAP 30 and Interpretation 13, the Group has adopted a policy to assess goodwill

eliminated against reserves for impairment. As a result, the Group has performed an assessment of the fair

value of the goodwill previously eliminated against reserves and has recognised an impairment of such

goodwill of HK$823,055,000 as at 31st December, 2000. This change of accounting policy has been

accounted for retrospectively as a prior year adjustment in accordance with the transitional provisions of

SSAP 30.

This prior year adjustment has resulted in impairment of goodwill in the amounts of HK$595,610,000 and

HK$227,445,000 arising on acquisition of associates and subsidiaries, respectively, being charged to the

consolidated profit and loss account for the year ended 31st December, 2000; a consequential increase in

the amount of accumulated losses of HK$823,055,000 and a consequential increase in the amount of the

contributed surplus of HK$823,055,000, previously reported in reserves as at 31st December, 2000. This

prior year adjustment has had no effect on the current year. The amounts of the goodwill still remaining in

reserves, arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries and associates prior to 1st January, 2001, are further

detailed in note 33 to the financial statements.

5. D I S C O N T I N U E D O P E R A T I O N S

On 1st June, 2000, the Company and LSD entered into a reorganisation agreement to effect an overall group

reorganisation of the Lai Sun group of companies. As a result of the group reorganisation, among other

things, the Group transferred to LSD certain of its subsidiaries, associates and a long term investment, the

principal activities of which were the investment in and the operation of hotels and restaurants, and

property investment (the ‘‘Discontinued Operations’’).

The transaction was completed in two phases, which were undertaken on 30th June, 2000 and 31st July,

2000, respectively.

The results of the Discontinued Operations were accounted for until their effective dates of disposal, and the

related assets and liabilities were included in the calculation of the net gain arising on the disposal of the

Discontinued Operations, which amounted to HK$8,562,000 for the year ended 31st December, 2000.

The Discontinued Operations disposed of generated turnover of HK$156,936,000 and other revenue of

HK$42,840,000 and contributed a net profit of HK$54,826,000 to the Group’s loss from operating activities

for the year ended 31st December, 2000.

6. S E G M E N T I N F O R M A T I O N

SSAP 26 was adopted during the year, as detailed in note 2 to the financial statements. Segment information

is presented by way of two segment formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by business segment;

and (ii) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by geographical segment.
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6. S E G M E N T I N F O R M A T I O N ( c o n t i n u e d )

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed separately, according to the nature of their

operations and the products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s business segments represents a

strategic business unit that offers products and services which are subject to risks and returns that are

different from those of other business segments. Summary details of the business segments are as follows:

(a) the hotel and restaurant operations segment engages in the operation of hotels and restaurants, and

was discontinued in the prior year as detailed in note 5 to the financial statements;

(b) the hotel management segment engages in the provision of management services to hotels;

(c) the media and entertainment segment engages in investment in and production of entertainment

events, and the operation of websites;

(d) the satellite television segment engages in the television broadcasting business, including production

of television programmes and the operation of a satellite television channel;

(e) the advertising agency segment engages in the provision of advertising agency services, primarily in

respect of advertisements on television and in newspapers; and

(f) the corporate and other segment comprises the segment details in relation to the debt advanced to

FHEL of HK$1,500,040,000, further details of which are included in note 20 to the financial

statements, together with corporate income and expense items.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues and results are attributed to the segments based

on the location of the customers, and assets are attributed to the segments based on the location of the

assets.
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6. S E G M E N T I N F O R M A T I O N ( c o n t i n u e d )

(a) Business segments

The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and certain asset, liability and expenditure information

for the Group’s business segments.

Group

(Discontinued)

Hotel and

restaurant

operations Hotel management

Media and

entertainment Satellite television Advertising agency

Corporate and

other Consolidated

2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(Restated)

Segment revenue:

Sales to external customers — 156,936 4,955 4,160 — — — — 79,421 45,852 — — 84,376 206,948

Other revenue — — — 553 715 — — — — 767 77,930 110,837 78,645 112,157

Total — 156,936 4,955 4,713 715 — — — 79,421 46,619 77,930 110,837 163,021 319,105

Segment results — 43,949 2,316 1,840 (14,338) (5,759) (49,425) (7,203) 1,873 3,265 14,261 (3,591) (45,313) 32,501

Dividend income and unallocated

interest and other gains 7,932 19,843

Gain on disposal of interests in

associates 5,060 3,855 6,552 3,855 11,612

Gain/(loss) on disposal of short

term investments (65,853) 15,389 (65,853) 15,389

Impairment of goodwill arising on

acquisition of associates and a

jointly-controlled entity (32,990) (32,990) —

Unrealised holding loss on short

term investments (351,206) — (351,206)

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 22,127 1,469 — 23,596

Loss on disposal of a long term

investment (20,000) — (20,000)

Impairment of a long term

investment (29,871) (29,871) —

Impairment of an investment in an

associate (3,168) (3,168) —

Prior year adjustment:

Impairment of goodwill

arising on acquisition of

associates (595,610) — (595,610)

Impairment of goodwill

arising on acquisition of

subsidiaries (194,577) (32,868) — (227,445)

Loss from operating activities (165,408) (1,091,320)

Finance costs (4,141) (15,819)

Share of profits and losses of :

Associates (7,216) (7,153) (7,216) (7,153)

A jointly-controlled entity (2,658) (2,658) —

Loss before tax (179,423) (1,114,292)

Tax (2,130) (14,875)

Loss before minority interests (181,553) (1,129,167)

Minority interests (135) 462

Net loss attributable to

shareholders (181,688) (1,128,705)
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6. S E G M E N T I N F O R M A T I O N ( c o n t i n u e d )

(a) Business segments (continued)

Group

(Discontinued)

Hotel and

restaurant

operations Hotel management

Media and

entertainment Satellite television Advertising agency Corporate and other Consolidated

2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Segment assets — 18,368 3,061 1,441 16,218 14,871 202,442 81,748 20,070 19,289 1,578,393 1,581,290 1,820,184 1,717,007

Interests in associates — — — — 85,983 52,537 — — — — — — 85,983 52,537

Interest in a jointly-controlled

entity — — — — 6,006 — — — — — — — 6,006 —

Unallocated assets 51,965 198,947

Total assets 1,964,138 1,968,491

Segment liabilities — 1,055 1,528 4,503 483 4,783 2,592 855 13,094 12,136 12,252 15,474 29,949 38,806

Unallocated liabilities 42,543 18,313

Total liabilities 72,492 57,119

Other segment information:

Depreciation and

amortisation — 9,386 — — 4,581 1,727 4,649 — 39 50 718 1,132 9,987 12,295

Impairment losses

recognised in the

profit and loss

account — — — — 66,029 790,187 — — — 32,868 — — 66,029 823,055

Provision for bad debts — — — — — — — — 237 — 882 16,624 1,119 16,624

Write-back of provisions

for bad and doubtful

debts — 31,558 — — — — — — — — 1,531 — 1,531 31,558

Write off of deposits paid — — — — 3,412 — — — — — — — 3,412 —

Capital expenditure — 2,248 — — 270 12,151 59,230 78,374 13 820 681 1,136 60,194 94,729
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6. S E G M E N T I N F O R M A T I O N ( c o n t i n u e d )

(b) Geographical segments

The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and certain asset and expenditure information for the

Group’s geographical segments.

Group Hong Kong

Elsewhere in

the PRC Canada Other areas Consolidated

2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(Restated)

Segment revenue:

Sales to external customers 22,800 125,940 56,621 36,695 — 11,177 4,955 33,136 84,376 206,948

Segment results (46,105) 4,789 (826) 1,910 — (6,709) 1,618 32,511 (45,313) 32,501

Other segment information:

Segment assets 1,872,204 1,735,778 31,617 13,782 — 18,374 8,352 1,610 1,912,173 1,769,544

Unallocated assets 51,965 198,947

Total assets 1,964,138 1,968,491

Capital expenditure 48,931 91,195 11,263 2,358 — 924 — 252 60,194 94,729
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7. R E L A T E D P A R T Y T R A N S A C T I O N S

In addition to the related party transactions and balances detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the

Group had the following transactions with related parties during the year.

Group

2001 2000

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Rental expense paid to a fellow subsidiary (a) (i) — 2,325

Rental expense paid to a related company (a) (i) 2,238 —

Hotel management, royalty and marketing fees received from hotels

held by certain associates of LSD and a fellow subsidiary (a) (ii) — 3,062

Hotel management, royalty and marketing fees received from hotels

held by related companies (a) (ii) 5,056 —

Hotel management fees paid to a fellow subsidiary (a) (iii) — 2,127

Hotel management fees paid to a related company (a) (iii) 1,948 —

Legal fees paid to Boughton Peterson Yang Anderson (iv) 762 2,010

Interest income on deposits paid to Furama Hotel Enterprises

Limited (note 20) — 69,787

Interest income on an amount due from Furama Hotel Enterprises

Limited (note 20) 75,002 37,489

Interest income from an associate (v) 1,654 —

Interest income from a jointly-controlled entity (vi) 379 —

Purchase of programme rights from an associate (vii) 50,600 —

(a) The related companies (the ‘‘LSD Subsidiaries’’) are all subsidiaries of LSD, other than those which are

members in the Group. Since the Company remained as a subsidiary of LSD up to 4th April, 2001,

these LSD Subsidiaries are regarded as fellow subsidiaries on or before 4th April, 2001 and subsequent

to that date, they became related companies of the Group.
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7. R E L A T E D P A R T Y T R A N S A C T I O N S ( c o n t i n u e d )
Notes:

(i) Rental is charged with reference to market rates.

(ii) The hotel management, royalty and marketing fees are charged to the hotels at certain percentages ranging from 1% to 10% (2000 :
1% to 10%) on the gross revenue or operating profits of the hotels.

(iii) The hotel management fees paid are charged at certain percentages ranging from 1.5% to 1.8% (2000 : 1.5% to 1.8%) on the gross
revenue of the hotels.

(iv) The legal fees were charged by Boughton Peterson Yang Anderson for the legal services rendered to the Group at market rates. Mr.
Victor Yang, a director of the Company, is a partner of the firm.

(v) The interest income from an associate was charged at 1% above the prime rate quoted by the Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited (the ‘‘HSBC prime rate’’) per annum or at 1.75% above the United States prime rate per annum.

(vi) Interest income from a jointly-controlled entity was charged at 1% above the HSBC prime rate per annum.

(vii) The programme rights were purchased from an associate of the Group on terms stated in the sale and purchase agreement.

8. T U R N O V E R A N D R E V E N U E

Turnover, principally comprises hotel and restaurant operating income, hotel management fees and

advertising income. An analysis of turnover and revenue is as follows:

Group

2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover

Continuing operations:

Advertising income 79,421 45,852*

Hotel management fee income 4,955 4,160

84,376 50,012

Discontinued operations:

Hotel and restaurant operations — 156,936

84,376 206,948

Other revenue

Interest income 82,784 126,119

Dividend income from a long term investment — 1,000

Others 3,793 4,881

86,577 132,000

170,953 338,948

* During the year, the directors have reviewed the operations of the Group’s advertising agency services and consider that it is more appropriate to

record the income earned from such services on a gross basis instead of on a net commission income basis. Accordingly, the amount of the Group’s

advertising income for the year ended 31st December, 2000 has been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.
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9. L O S S F R O M O P E R A T I N G A C T I V I T I E S

Group

2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000

(Restated)

This is arrived at after crediting:

Gross and net rental income — 2,658

Write-back of provisions for bad and doubtful debts 1,531 31,558

Gain on disposal of fixed assets — 1,015

and after charging:

Cost of inventories sold 18,723 —

Cost of services provided 75,921 124,694

Staff costs:

Wages and salaries (including directors’ emoluments — see note 11) 66,885 85,494

Pension contributions 1,736 115

Less: Forfeited contributions — (69)

Net pension contributions 1,736 46

68,621 85,540

Auditors’ remuneration 850 1,237

Depreciation 8,224 12,295

Minimum lease payments under operating leases in respect of

land and buildings 3,378 4,508

Foreign exchange losses, net 868 898

Provisions for bad and doubtful debts 1,119 16,624

Amortisation of goodwill on acquisition of associates and a jointly-controlled

entity* 1,763 —

Impairment of a long term investment* 29,871 —

Impairment of an investment in an associate* 3,168 —

Loss on disposal of fixed assets 792 —

Write off of deposits paid 3,412 —

* These items are included in the ‘‘Other operating expenses’’ as shown on the face of the consolidated profit and loss account.
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10. F I N A N C E C O S T S

Group

2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000

Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings

wholly repayable within five years 1,947 13,169

Interest on finance leases 17 3

Bank charges 2,177 1,229

Exchange differences arising from translation of bank loans

and other borrowings — 1,418

4,141 15,819

11. D I R E C T O R S ’ A N D E M P L O Y E E S ’ E M O L U M E N T S

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on Stock

Exchange and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

Group

2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000

Fees 480 480

Other emoluments:

Basic salaries, bonuses, housing and other allowances, and benefits in

kind 31,941 18,229

Pension scheme contributions 217 —

32,638 18,709

Directors’ fees of HK$480,000 (2000 : HK$480,000) were paid to two (2000 : two) independent non-

executive directors during the year.
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11. D I R E C T O R S ’ A N D E M P L O Y E E S ’ E M O L U M E N T S ( c o n t i n u e d )

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The number of directors whose emoluments fell within the designated bands is as follows:

Group

Number of directors

2001 2000

Nil – HK$1,000,000 8 10

HK$1,000,001 – HK$1,500,000 3 1

HK$1,500,001 – HK$2,000,000 1 —

HK$2,000,001 – HK$2,500,000 — 1

HK$2,500,001 – HK$3,000,000 — 1

HK$3,000,001 – HK$3,500,000 2 1

HK$3,500,001 – HK$4,000,000 — 1

HK$4,500,001 – HK$5,000,000 — 1

HK$19,000,001 – HK$19,500,000 1 —

15 16

There were no arrangements under which a Director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the

year.

(b) Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid employees during the year included four (2000 : five) directors, the details of whose

emoluments are set out above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining one (2000 : Nil) non-director,

highest paid employee are as follows:

Group

2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 2,142 —

Pension scheme contributions 90 —

2,232 —
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12. T A X

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16% (2000 : 16%) on the estimated assessable profits

arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates

of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations

and practices in respect thereof.

Group

2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000

Provision for tax for the year:

Hong Kong 3,195 14,000

Elsewhere 393 645

Deferred (note 21) 699 —

4,287 14,645

Prior year’s overprovisions

Hong Kong (3,000) —

Elsewhere (942) (42)

(3,942) (42)

Associates:

Hong Kong 1,785 92

Elsewhere — 180

1,785 272

Tax charge for the year 2,130 14,875

13. N E T L O S S A T T R I B U T A B L E T O S H A R E H O L D E R S

The net loss attributable to shareholders dealt with in the financial statements of the Company during the

year was HK$934,910,000 (2000 : HK$358,221,000).

The Group’s share of aggregate net losses retained by the associates and a jointly-controlled entity for the

year amounted to HK$9,001,000 (2000 : HK$7,425,000) and HK$2,658,000 (2000 : Nil), respectively.
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14. L O S S P E R S H A R E

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the net loss attributable to shareholders for the year of

HK$181,688,000 (2000 — restated: HK$1,128,705,000), and the weighted average of 561,493,823 (2000 :

370,393,088) ordinary shares in issue during the year, after taking into account the effect of the rights issue

during the year.

The diluted loss per share for the years ended 31st December, 2001 and 2000 has not been shown because

the options outstanding during these years had no dilutive effect on the basic loss per share for these years.

15. FIXED ASSETS

Group

31st

December,

2000 Additions Disposals

Exchange

realignments

31st

December,

2001

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Cost:

Construction in progress 1,419 10,843 — — 12,262

Land and buildings 75,000 — — — 75,000

Leasehold improvements 9,787 19,777 (5,596) (123) 23,845

Furniture, fixtures and

equipment 4,990 1,774 (3,084) (54) 3,626

Broadcast operations and

engineering equipment — 24,692 — — 24,692

Motor vehicles 44 496 (263) (1) 276

Computers 11,878 2,612 (571) 14 13,933

103,118 60,194 (9,514) (164) 153,634

Accumulated depreciation:

Land and buildings — 968 — — 968

Leasehold improvements 3,615 3,034 (2,740) (55) 3,854

Furniture, fixtures and

equipment 2,394 533 (1,573) (25) 1,329

Broadcast operations and

engineering equipment — 1,193 — — 1,193

Motor vehicles 43 29 (61) (1) 10

Computers 1,977 2,467 (150) 11 4,305

8,029 8,224 (4,524) (70) 11,659

Net book value 95,089 141,975
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15. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

The Group’s land and buildings as at 31st December, 2001 were situated in Hong Kong, held under medium

term leases and were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (2000 : Nil) (note 31).

The net book value of assets held under finance leases included in the total amount of furniture, fixtures and

equipment as at 31st December, 2001, amounted to HK$144,000 (2000 : HK$136,000).

The cost of the construction in progress comprises the premium paid for land registered in Macau with a

medium term lease and expenditures incurred for the development of a building constructed thereon.

16. L O N G T E R M I N V E S T M E N T S

Group

2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000

Unlisted equity investments, at cost 39,553 34,553

Provisions for impairment (29,871) —

9,682 34,553

17. I N T E R E S T S I N S U B S I D I A R I E S

Company

2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000

Unlisted shares, at cost 1,145,820 1,145,819

Amounts due from subsidiaries 2,733,394 2,584,071

3,879,214 3,729,890

Provisions for impairment (2,047,467) (1,116,408)

1,831,747 2,613,482

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment except for

as set out below:

(i) an amount of HK$39,134,000 (2000 : Nil), which bears interest at 15% per annum;

(ii) an amount of HK$7,500,000 (2000 : Nil), which bears interest at 1% above the HSBC prime rate per

annum; and

(iii) an amount of HK$1,500,040,000 (2000 : Nil), which bears interest at 1% per annum.
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of company

Place of

incorporation or

registration/place of

operations

Issued/

registered share

capital and class

of shares held

Effective %

of capital held by

Principal activitiesCompany Group

Dragon Age Enterprise Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1

Ordinary

100 100 Investment holding

E-Scope Limited British Virgin Islands US$1

Ordinary

100 100 Investment holding

East Asia Entertainment Limited Hong Kong HK$2

Ordinary

— 100 Entertainment

activity

production

East Asia Satellite Television Limited Hong Kong HK$2

Ordinary

— 100 Programme

production,

distribution and

broadcasting

East Asia-Televisão Por Satélite,

Limitada*

Macau MOP$25,000

Quota

— 100 Programme

production,

distribution and

broadcasting

Express.com Group Limited British Virgin Islands US$100

Ordinary

100 100 Investment holding

Glynhill International Limited Hong Kong HK$912,623,351

Ordinary

100 100 Investment holding

Golden Pool Enterprise Limited Hong Kong HK$2

Ordinary

— 100 Investment holding

Houseman International Limited British Virgin Islands US$2

Ordinary

100 100 Investment holding

Kaleidoscope International Limited British Virgin Islands/

Hong Kong

US$1

Ordinary

100 100 Property holding

Lai Sun Technology Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2

Ordinary

— 100 Provision of

administration

services

Lancaster Technology Limited British Virgin Islands US$1

Ordinary

100 100 Investment holding

Skymaster International Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1

Ordinary

100 100 Investment holding

Vision Advertising (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$2

Ordinary

— 100 Provision of

advertising agency

services and

investment

holding
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of company

Place of

incorporation or

registration/place of

operations

Issued/

registered share

capital and class

of shares held

Effective %

of capital held by

Principal activitiesCompany Group

Vision Communications (GZ)

Limited*

The People’s

Republic of China

HK$3,000,000# — 90 Provision of

advertising agency

services

Zimba International Limited British Virgin Islands/

Hong Kong

US$1

Ordinary

— 100 Trading of

marketable

securities

# The amount stated represents the paid-up capital in the People’s Republic of China.

* Audited by public accountants other than Ernst & Young.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally

affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details

of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

18. I N T E R E S T I N A J O I N T L Y - C O N T R O L L E D E N T I T Y

Group

2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000

Share of net liabilities (2,658) —

Goodwill on acquisition, net of amortisation and impairment — —

(2,658) —

Amount due from a jointly-controlled entity 8,664 —

6,006 —

Except for an amount of HK$7,500,000 which is interest bearing at 1% above the HSBC prime rate per

annum, the amount due from a jointly-controlled entity is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed terms of

repayment.

Particulars of the jointly-controlled entity are as follows:

Name

Business

structure

Place of

incorporation/

registration and

operations

Percentage of

Ownership

interest Voting power

Profit

sharing Principal activity

The Artiste Campus

International

Limited (formerly

known as Union

Holding Limited)

Corporate Hong Kong 50% 50% 50% Provision of agency

services to

artistes
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18. I N T E R E S T I N A J O I N T L Y - C O N T R O L L E D E N T I T Y ( c o n t i n u e d )

The interest in a jointly-controlled entity are indirectly held by the Company.

SSAP 30 was adopted during the year, as detailed in note 2 to the financial statements. The amount of the

goodwill capitalised as an asset, arising from the acquisition of a jointly-controlled entity, is as follows:

Group

2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000

Cost:

Acquisition of a jointly-controlled entity 7,609 —

At 31st December 7,609 —

Accumulated amortisation and impairment:

Amortisation provided during the year 349 —

Impairment provided during the year 7,260 —

At 31st December 7,609 —

Net book value:

At 31st December — —

19. I N T E R E S T S I N A S S O C I A T E S

Group Company

2001 2000 2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Share of net assets 44,764 44,498 — —

Goodwill on acquisition, net of amortisation

and impairment — — — —

44,764 44,498 — —

Amounts due from associates, net of provisions 4,200 3,039 411 —

Amounts due to associates (76) — (2,250) —

Loans to associates 37,095 5,000 32,095 —

85,983 52,537 30,256 —
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19. I N T E R E S T S I N A S S O C I A T E S ( c o n t i n u e d )

The balances with associates, including loans to associates, are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed

terms of repayment, except for (i) an amount of HK$16,495,000 which bears interest at 1% above the HSBC

prime rate per annum; and (ii) HK$15,600,000 which bears interest at 1.75% above the United States prime

rate per annum.

SSAP 30 was adopted during the year, as detailed in note 2 to the financial statements. The amount of the

goodwill capitalised as an asset, arising from the acquisition of interests in associates, is as follows:

Group

2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000

Cost:

Acquisition of interests in associates 33,704 —

Disposal of interest in an associate (6,560) —

At 31st December 27,144 —

Accumulated amortisation and impairment:

Amortisation provided during the year 1,414 —

Impairment provided during the year 25,730 —

At 31st December 27,144 —

Net book value:

At 31st December — —

As detailed in note 3 to the financial statements, the Group has adopted the transitional provisions of SSAP

30 which permits goodwill in respect of acquisitions which occurred prior to 1st January, 2001, to remain

eliminated against reserves or credited to the contributed surplus, respectively. Further details of the

amount of the goodwill in reserves, arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries and associates prior to 1st

January, 2001 are included in note 33 to the financial statements.
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19. I N T E R E S T S I N A S S O C I A T E S ( c o n t i n u e d )

Details of the principal associates are as follows:

Name of company

Business

structure

Place of

incorporation/

registration

Class of

shares held

% of equity

attributable

to the Group

Principal

activities

China Economic

Information Net

(HK) Limited*

Corporate Hong Kong Ordinary and

redeemable

preference

28.47% Development

and operation

of websites

Coolala International

Limited

Corporate Hong Kong Ordinary 50% Development

and operation

of a website

Eastweek.com.hk

Limited*

Corporate British Virgin

Islands

Ordinary 50% Development

and operation

of a website

HKATV.com

Limited*

Corporate Hong Kong Ordinary 50% Development

and operation

of a website

Media Asia Holdings

Ltd.

Corporate British Virgin

Islands

Ordinary 35.13% Film production

and

distribution

and

investment

holding

Splendid Cyber

Group Limited*

Corporate Hong Kong Ordinary 50% Development

and operation

of websites

* Audited by public accountants other than Ernst & Young.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected

the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other

associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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20. D U E F R O M F U R A M A H O T E L E N T E R P R I S E S L I M I T E D

On 11th February, 1999, the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Golden Pool Enterprise Limited

(‘‘GPEL’’), entered into an agreement (the ‘‘Development Agreement’’) with LSD and its wholly-owned

subsidiary, Furama Hotel Enterprises Limited (‘‘FHEL’’), with respect to the purchase by GPEL of the retail

and hotel portion of the Furama Hotel Hong Kong (‘‘the Furama Hotel’’), which is a property situated in

Hong Kong, upon the completion of its redevelopment into a composite retail, hotel and office building (the

‘‘New Building’’), which was expected to be completed in or around May 2004.

The consideration of HK$1,900,000,000 for the purchase of the retail and hotel portion of the Furama Hotel

was fully paid by GPEL to FHEL in 1999. According to the Development Agreement, the prepaid

consideration was interest-bearing at the higher of 8% or LIBOR plus 2% per annum for an amount of

HK$964,923,000, and at the three-month deposit rate offered by the Group’s principal banks plus 1% per

annum for the remaining HK$935,077,000. The interest income received and receivable from the prepaid

consideration during the year ended 31st December, 2000 was HK$69,787,000.

On 1st June, 2000, the Company and LSD entered into a reorganisation agreement (the ‘‘Reorganisation

Agreement’’). Pursuant to the Reorganisation Agreement, the Development Agreement was cancelled on 29th

June, 2000 upon approval by the shareholders of the Company and LSD. Accordingly, the prepaid

consideration of HK$1,900,000,000 became immediately due from FHEL.

In connection with the Reorganisation Agreement, the Company transferred certain hotel and ancillary

assets, through the disposal of certain subsidiaries, associates and a long term investment, with an aggregate

value of HK$685,410,000 to LSD and, at the same time, LSD transferred certain technology-oriented assets

with an aggregate value of HK$1,085,370,000 to the Company. The excess consideration of

HK$399,960,000 payable by the Company to LSD in respect of such asset transfers was deducted from

the outstanding principal amount of indebtedness of HK$1,900,000,000, which FHEL owned to GPEL, as a

result of the cancellation of the Development Agreement as mentioned above. The amount due from FHEL

was then reduced to HK$1,500,040,000.

An intercompany debt deed was entered into by the Company, LSD, FHEL and GPEL on 30th June, 2000

(the ‘‘Debt Deed’’), pursuant to which the Company agreed to defer the settlement of the remaining

HK$1,500,040,000 of the outstanding indebtedness due from FHEL to the earlier of 31st December, 2002

or the day on which the Exchangeable Bonds and Convertible Bonds 2002 of the LSD group are repaid in

full. LSD has guaranteed the repayment of the outstanding principal and accrued interest payable to GPEL.

The Company is also entitled to share, on a pari passu and pro rata basis with the Exchangeable

Bondholders and the Convertible Bondholders of the LSD group (the ‘‘Parties’’), the following security:

(a) a limited recourse second charge over 6,500 shares of HK$1.00 each in the issued share capital of

Diamond String Limited (which owns the Ritz-Carlton Hong Kong Hotel) beneficially owned by LSD;

and

(b) a negative pledge granted by LSD, pursuant to which LSD has agreed not to create additional security

over certain major properties of the LSD group without the prior consent of the Parties.

31st December, 2001

eSUN HOLDINGS ANNUAL REPORT 2001

59

Notes to Financial Statements



20. D U E F R O M F U R A M A H O T E L E N T E R P R I S E S L I M I T E D ( c o n t i n u e d )

The outstanding balance of HK$1,500,040,000 is interest-bearing at 5% per annum. The interest income

received and receivable during the year in this respect was HK$75,002,000 (2000 : HK$37,489,000). As

mentioned above, the outstanding balance of HK$1,500,040,000 due from FHEL is repayable on or before

31st December, 2002. The directors have discussed with the management of FHEL and LSD and obtained an

understanding that LSD is currently working closely with its legal and financial advisors to fomulate a plan

for the repayment and/or refinancing of the outstanding balance due to the Group, the Exchangeable

Bondholders and the Convertible Bondholders, and the other borrowings. In view of this, the directors

consider that it is appropriate to continue to classify the amount of HK$1,500,040,000 due from FHEL, the

repayment of which is guaranteed by LSD, as a non-current asset as at 31st December, 2001, pending LSD’s

formulation of its repayment plan.

21. D E F E R R E D T A X A S S E T S

The principal components of the net deferred tax assets recognised at the balance sheet date mainly

comprised capital allowances on fixed assets.

Group

2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000

At beginning of year 1,360 1,397

Charge for the year (note 12) (699) —

Exchange realignment — (37)

At end of year 661 1,360

The principal components of the Group’s provision for deferred tax, and the net deferred tax asset position

not recognised are as follows:

Group Company

2001 2000 2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Accelerated capital allowances on fixed assets (48) 42 — —

Tax losses available for carryforward 4,539 6,050 — 1,726

4,491 6,092 — 1,726
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22. S H O R T T E R M I N V E S T M E N T S

Group Company

2001 2000 2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Listed equity investments at market value:

Hong Kong 933 162,732 443 283

Elsewhere 237 238 — —

1,170 162,970 443 283

23. D U E F R O M A F E L L O W S U B S I D I A R Y / A R E L A T E D C O M P A N Y

The balance represents interest receivable from FHEL which is secured (note 20), interest-free and is

repayable within one year.

24. S T O C K S

Group

2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000

Raw materials — 392

25. L O A N R E C E I V A B L E

The loan representing an advance to an independent third party is secured by certain equity interests held

by the borrower, bears interest at 15% per annum and is repayable within one year.
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26. D E B T O R S A N D D E P O S I T S

Trading terms with customers are largely on credit. Invoices are normally payable within 30 days of

issuance, except for certain well established customers, where the terms are extended to 60 days. Each

customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding

receivables and has a credit control policy to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed

by senior management. An aged analysis of the trade debtors as at 31st December, 2001 is as follows:

Group Company

2001 2000 2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Trade debtors:

Less than 30 days 4,134 2,958 — —

31 – 60 days 1,724 6,550 — —

61 – 90 days 250 1,056 — —

Over 90 days 3,890 1,592 — —

9,998 12,156 — —

Other debtors and deposits 66,548 37,384 31,504 5,237

76,546 49,540 31,504 5,237

The above aged analysis, stated net of provisions for doubtful debts, was prepared based on the dates when

revenue is recognised from the trade transactions.

27. C A S H H E L D I N T R U S T

With respect to the dissolution of the Whistler Mountain Inn, Limited Partnership (the ‘‘Partnership’’) in the

prior year, an amount of HK$2,276,000 (2000 : HK$2,276,000) was held in trust as at 31st December, 2001

pending the settlement of all damages, including interest, relating to litigation in respect of the Partnership

(see note 35(b)).

28. C A S H A N D C A S H E Q U I V A L E N T S

Group Company

2001 2000 2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Cash and bank balances 22,116 14,004 118 63

Time deposits 31,749 36,825 1,000 23,744

53,865 50,829 1,118 23,807
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29. C R E D I T O R S A N D A C C R U A L S

An aged analysis of the trade creditors as at 31st December, 2001 is as follows:

Group Company

2001 2000 2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Trade creditors:

Less than 30 days 3,224 2,362 — —

31 – 60 days 2,853 1,734 — —

61 – 90 days 2,827 145 — —

Over 90 days 5,861 6,732 — —

14,765 10,973 — —

Other creditors and accruals 15,196 27,836 1,787 4,138

29,961 38,809 1,787 4,138

The above aged analysis was prepared based on the dates of receipt of the goods and services purchased.
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30. F I N A N C E L E A S E P A Y A B L E S

The Group leases certain of its furniture, fixtures and equipment. These leases are classified as finance leases

and have remaining lease terms of four years.

At 31st December, 2001, the total future minimum lease payments under finance leases and their present

values, were as follows:

Group

Minimum

lease

payments

Minimum lease

payments

Present value

of minimum

lease

payments

Present value

of minimum

lease payments

2001 2000 2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Amounts payable:

Within one year 44 35 27 19

In the second year 44 35 32 22

In the third to fifth years,

inclusive 86 98 75 81

Total minimum finance lease

payments 174 168 134 122

Future finance charges (40) (46)

Total net finance lease payables 134 122

Portion classified as current

liabilities (27) (19)

Long term portion 107 103

SSAP 14 was revised and implemented during the year, as detailed in note 2 to the financial statements.

Certain new disclosures are required and have been included above. The prior year comparative amounts for

the new disclosures have also been included where appropriate.
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31. I N T E R E S T - B E A R I N G B A N K L O A N S

Group and Company

The bank loans were secured by fixed charges on the Group’s land and buildings with an aggregate net book

value at the balance sheet date of approximately HK$74,032,000 (2000 : Nil).

32. S H A R E C A P I T A L

2001 2000

Number of

shares Nominal value

Number of

shares Nominal value

’000 HK$’000 ’000 HK$’000

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.50

each 2,000,000 1,000,000 2,000,000 1,000,000

Issued and fully paid:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.50

each 571,185 285,592 377,057 188,528

During the year, the following movements in share capital were recorded:

(a) On 16th November, 2000, the Company proposed to raise not less than HK$160,000,000, before

expenses, by issuing approximately 188,528,309 new shares of the Company of HK$0.50 each, by way

of a rights issue at a price of HK$0.85 per rights share on the basis of one rights share for every two

existing shares held on 29th December, 2000. On 16th January, 2001, the Directors announced that

the rights issue of 188,528,309 new shares had become unconditional and payable in full on

acceptance. Accordingly, on 16th January, 2001, 188,528,309 new ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each

were issued at a price of HK$0.85 per share, to provide funds for the acquisition and establishment of

a television programme production centre and facilities to be set up at both the Hong Kong Office and

a site in the Macau Special Administrative Region, and for working capital for the Group.

(b) On 9th February, 2001, a conditional sale and purchase agreement (the ‘‘Agreement’’) was entered into

between Autumn Gold Limited (‘‘Autumn Gold’’), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Mr.

Chan Chee Kheong (‘‘Mr. Chan’’). Pursuant to the Agreement, Autumn Gold acquired from Mr. Chan

five existing shares of HK$1.00 each, being a 50% equity interest, of The Artiste Campus International

Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, for a total consideration of

HK$7,600,005, comprising (i) HK$2,000,005 in cash, and (ii) the balance of HK$5,600,000 by the

allotment and issue of a total of 5,600,000 new shares of HK$0.50 each in the share capital of the

Company, at an issue price of HK$1.00 per share. The allotment of the 5,600,000 new ordinary shares

of HK$0.50 each at a price of HK$1.00 per share to Mr. Chan was completed on 4th April, 2001, on

which the market price of the share of the Company was HK$0.87 per share.
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32. S H A R E C A P I T A L ( c o n t i n u e d )

A summary of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company during the year is as follows:

Number of

ordinary

shares Amount

’000 HK$’000

At beginning of year 377,057 188,528

Issue of rights shares (a) 188,528 94,264

Shares issued as partial consideration for the acquisition of a jointly-

controlled entity (b) 5,600 2,800

At 31st December, 2001 571,185 285,592

Share options

The Company operates a share option scheme (the ‘‘Scheme’’), further details of which are set out under the

heading ‘‘Share Option Scheme’’ in the Report of the Directors on pages 16 to 17.

(i) Share options expiring on 22nd August, 2001

At the beginning of the year, there were 1,200,000 outstanding share options granted to a director of the

Company. The options were exercisable during the period from 23rd August, 1999 to 22nd August, 2001 at

a subscription price of HK$2.50 per share.

Pursuant to the rights issue of the Company’s shares on 16th January, 2001, the number of these

outstanding share options was adjusted from 1,200,000 to 1,800,000 and the exercise price was adjusted

from HK$2.50 per share to HK$2.176 per share. All of these share options lapsed during the year.

(ii) Share options expiring on 12th August, 2002

At the beginning of the year, there were 9,400,000 and 2,000,000 outstanding share options granted to the

directors of the Company and employees of the Group, respectively. The options are exercisable during the

period from 13th August, 2000 to 12th August, 2002 at a subscription price of HK$3.05 per share.

7,400,000 of these options are exercisable in four six-month tranches.

Pursuant to the rights issue of the Company’s shares on 16th January, 2001, the number of these

outstanding share options was adjusted from 11,400,000 to 17,100,000 and the exercise price was adjusted

from HK$3.05 per share to HK$2.655 per share.

5,550,000 share options lapsed during the year.
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32. S H A R E C A P I T A L ( c o n t i n u e d )

Share options (continued)

(ii) Share options expiring on 12th August, 2002 (continued)

As at the balance sheet date, the Company had outstanding 11,550,000 of these share options and the

exercise in full of these share options would result in the issue of 11,550,000 additional shares of HK$0.50

each.

(iii) Share options expiring on 4th September, 2002

At the beginning of the year, there were 9,000,000 outstanding share options granted to the directors of the

Company. The options are exercisable during the period from 5th September, 2000 to 4th September, 2002

at a subscription price of HK$7.00 per share.

Pursuant to the rights issue of the Company’s shares on 16th January, 2001, the number of these

outstanding share options was adjusted from 9,000,000 to 13,500,000 and the exercise price was adjusted

from HK$7.00 per share to HK$6.094 per share.

None of these share options were exercised during the year.

As at the balance sheet date, the Company had outstanding 13,500,000 of these share options and the

exercise in full of these share options would result in the issue of 13,500,000 additional shares of HK$0.50

each.

(iv) Share options expiring on 28th October, 2002

At the beginning of the year, there were 600,000 outstanding share options granted to an employee of the

Group. The options are exercisable during the period from 29th October, 2000 to 28th October, 2002 (in

four six-month tranches) at a subscription price of HK$1.415 per share.

Pursuant to the rights issue of the Company’s shares on 16th January, 2001, the number of these

outstanding share options was adjusted from 600,000 to 900,000 and the exercise price was adjusted from

HK$1.415 per share to HK$1.232 per share.

450,000 share options lapsed during the year.

As at the balance sheet date, the Company had outstanding 450,000 of these share options and the exercise

in full of these share options would result in the issue of 450,000 additional shares of HK$0.50 each.
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33. RESERVES

Group

Share

premium

account

Contributed

surplus

Accumulated

losses Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1st January, 2000 2,789,957 891,289 (866,056) 2,815,190

Issue of shares 34,286 — — 34,286

Exercise of share options 1,600 — — 1,600

Share issue expenses (3,366) — — (3,366)

Elimination of goodwill arising on

acquisition of:

Subsidiaries — (227,445) — (227,445)

Associates — (595,610) — (595,610)

Exchange reserve released upon

disposal of:

Subsidiaries — — 256 256

Associates — — 2,526 2,526

Prior year adjustment:

SSAP 30 — impairment of goodwill

(note 4) — 823,055 — 823,055

Exchange realignments — — 836 836

Loss for the year (as restated — note 4) — — (1,128,705) (1,128,705)

At 31st December, 2000 2,822,477 891,289 (1,991,143) 1,722,623

At 1st January, 2001

As previously reported 2,822,477 68,234 (1,168,088) 1,722,623

Prior year adjustment:

SSAP 30 — impairment of

goodwill (note 4) — 823,055 (823,055) —

As restated 2,822,477 891,289 (1,991,143) 1,722,623

Issue of rights shares 65,985 — — 65,985

Shares issued as partial consideration

for acquisition of a jointly-controlled

entity 2,800 — — 2,800

Share issue expenses (2,629) — — (2,629)

Exchange realignments — — (1,356) (1,356)

Loss for the year — — (181,688) (181,688)

At 31st December, 2001 2,888,633 891,289 (2,174,187) 1,605,735
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33. R E S E R V E S ( c o n t i n u e d )

Group (continued)

Share

premium

account

Contributed

surplus

Accumulated

losses Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Retained by:

Company and subsidiaries 2,888,633 891,289 (2,158,424) 1,621,498

A jointly-controlled entity — — (2,658) (2,658)

Associates — — (13,105) (13,105)

31st December, 2001 2,888,633 891,289 (2,174,187) 1,605,735

Company and subsidiaries 2,822,477 891,289 (1,987,039) 1,726,727

Associates — — (4,104) (4,104)

31st December, 2000 2,822,477 891,289 (1,991,143) 1,722,623

Included in the debit balance of accumulated losses as at 31st December, 2001 are accumulated credit

balances in respect of exchange realignments amounting to HK$20,528,000 (2000 : HK$21,884,000).

The Group’s contributed surplus represents the excess value of the shares acquired over the nominal value

of the Company’s shares issued in exchange during the Group reorganisation in November 1996.

As detailed in note 3 to the financial statements, the Group has adopted the transitional provisions of SSAP

30 which permits goodwill in respect of acquisitions which occurred prior to 1st January, 2001, to remain

eliminated against reserves.
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33. R E S E R V E S ( c o n t i n u e d )

The amounts of the goodwill remaining in reserves, arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries and

associates prior to 1st January, 2001, are as follows:

Group

Goodwill

eliminated

against

contributed

surplus

HK$’000

Cost:

At beginning of year and 31st December, 2001 (823,055)

Accumulated impairment:

At beginning of year

As previously reported —

Prior year adjustment (note 4) 823,055

As restated:

At 31st December, 2000 and as at 31st December, 2001 823,055

Net amount:

At 31st December, 2001 —

At 31st December, 2000

As previously reported (823,055)

Prior year adjustment 823,055

As restated —
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33. R E S E R V E S ( c o n t i n u e d )

Company

Share

premium

account

Contributed

surplus

Accumulated

losses Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1st January, 2000 2,789,957 845,455 (859,568) 2,775,844

Issue of shares 34,286 — — 34,286

Exercise of share options 1,600 — — 1,600

Share issue expenses (3,366) — — (3,366)

Loss for the year — — (358,221) (358,221)

At 31st December, 2000 and 1st

January, 2001 2,822,477 845,455 (1,217,789) 2,450,143

Issue of rights shares 65,985 — — 65,985

Shares issued as partial consideration

for acquisition of a jointly-controlled

entity 2,800 — — 2,800

Share issue expenses (2,629) — — (2,629)

Loss for the year — — (934,910) (934,910)

At 31st December, 2001 2,888,633 845,455 (2,152,699) 1,581,389

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess of the fair value of the subsidiaries’ shares

acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation in November 1996, over the nominal value of the Company’s

shares issued in exchange. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), distributions may be

made out of the contributed surplus in certain circumstances.
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34. N O T E S T O T H E C O N S O L I D A T E D C A S H F L O W S T A T E M E N T

(a) Reconciliation of loss from operating activities to net cash outflow from operating activities

Group

2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000

(Restated)

Loss from operating activities (165,408) (1,091,320)

Interest income (82,784) (126,119)

Dividend income — (1,000)

Depreciation 8,224 12,295

Amortisation of goodwill 1,763 —

Write off of deposits paid 3,412 —

Loss/(gain) on disposal of fixed assets 792 (1,015)

Loss on disposal of a long term investment — 20,000

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries — (23,596)

Gain on disposal of interests in associates (3,855) (11,612)

Loss/(gain) on disposal of short term investments 65,853 (15,389)

Unrealised holding loss on short term investments — 351,206

Provisions for bad and doubtful debts 1,119 16,624

Write-back of provisions for bad and doubtful debts (1,531) (31,558)

Impairment of a long term investment 29,871 —

Impairment of an investment in an associate 3,168 —

Impairment of goodwill 32,990 823,055

Legal and professional fees in respect of the group reorganisation — 6,646

Decrease in amounts due from fellow subsidiaries — 9,299

Decrease in stocks 392 3,644

Increase in self-produced and purchased programmes (53,129) —

Decrease in amount due from Whistler Mountain Inn, Limited Partnership — 3,147

Increase in loan receivable (39,134) —

Increase in debtors and deposits (28,687) (28,058)

Decrease in creditors and accruals (12,340) (33,084)

Net cash outflow from operating activities (239,284) (116,835)

31st December, 2001

eSUN HOLDINGS ANNUAL REPORT 2001

72

Notes to Financial Statements



34. N O T E S T O T H E C O N S O L I D A T E D C A S H F L O W S T A T E M E N T ( c o n t i n u e d )

(b) Analysis of changes in financing during the year

Issued capital

(including

share premium

account)

Bank loans

and cash

held in trust

Finance lease

obligations

Minority

interests

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Balance at 1st January, 2000 2,972,371 322,874 — 338,754

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from

financing 2,000 (26,363) (16) 16,477

Share issue expenses (3,366) — — —

Share issue on acquisition of

associates 40,000 — — —

Share of net loss for the year — — — (462)

Inception of finance lease — — 138 —

Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries — — — 62

Arising on disposal of subsidiaries — (299,249) — (354,701)

Exchange realignments — 462 — 91

Balance at 31st December, 2000 and

1st January, 2001 3,011,005 (2,276) 122 221

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from

financing 157,620 25,000 (29) —

Share issued as partial consideration

for the acquisition of a jointly-

controlled entity 5,600 — — —

Share of net profit for the year — — — 135

Inception of finance lease — — 41 —

Exchange realignments — — — (37)

Balance at 31st December, 2001 3,174,225 22,724 134 319

31st December, 2001

eSUN HOLDINGS ANNUAL REPORT 2001

73

Notes to Financial Statements



34. N O T E S T O T H E C O N S O L I D A T E D C A S H F L O W S T A T E M E N T ( c o n t i n u e d )

(c) Acquisition of subsidiaries

2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000

Net assets acquired:

Fixed assets — 285

Long term investments — 20,199

Interests in associates — 6,961

Debtors and deposits — 15,588

Cash and cash equivalents — 15,164

Creditors and accruals — (22,735)

Minority interests — (62)

— 35,400

Goodwill on acquisition — 227,445

— 262,845

Satisfied by:

Cash — 10,525

Amount payable to Furama Hotel Enterprises Limited — 252,320

— 262,845

Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries:

2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000

Cash consideration — (10,525)

Cash and cash equivalents acquired — 15,164

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition of

subsidiaries — 4,639

In respect of the cash flows for the year ended 31st December 2000, the subsidiaries acquired in that year

utilised HK$5,389,000 of the Group’s net operating cash flows, contributed HK$77,000 in respect of the net

returns on investments and servicing of finance, and paid HK$2,589,000 in respect of the investing

activities, but had no significant impact in respect of tax and the financing activities of the Group.
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34. N O T E S T O T H E C O N S O L I D A T E D C A S H F L O W S T A T E M E N T ( c o n t i n u e d )

(c) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

The subsidiaries acquired in the prior year contributed HK$45,852,000 (restated - note 8) to turnover and a

profit of HK$2,492,000 to the loss before minority interests of the Group for the year ended 31st December,

2000.

(d) Disposal of subsidiaries

2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000

Net assets disposed of:

Fixed assets — 1,095,677

Stocks — 9,538

Debtors and deposits — 40,060

Cash and cash equivalents — 67,584

Creditors and accruals — (45,219)

Bank loans and other borrowings — (300,118)

Minority interests — (354,701)

Release of exchange reserve — 256

— 513,077

Gain on disposal — 23,596

— 536,673

Satisfied by:

Amount due from Furama Hotel Enterprises Limited — 536,673

Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries:

2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000

Cash and bank balances disposed of — (67,584)

Bank loans disposed of with maturity within three months from the date of

advance — 869

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the disposal of

subsidiaries — (66,715)
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34. N O T E S T O T H E C O N S O L I D A T E D C A S H F L O W S T A T E M E N T ( c o n t i n u e d )

(d) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued)

In respect of the cash flows for the year ended 31st December 2000, the subsidiaries disposed of in that year

contributed HK$13,875,000 to the Group’s net operating cash flows, paid HK$12,277,000 in respect of the

net returns on investments and servicing of finance, made no contribution/payment in respect of tax, paid

HK$1,452,000 for investing activities, and contributed HK$781,000 in respect of financing.

The subsidiaries disposed of in the prior year contributed HK$145,760,000 to turnover and profit of

HK$5,428,000 to the loss before minority interests of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2000.

(e) Major non-cash transactions

(i) On 4th April, 2001, the Company issued a total of 5,600,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.50

each at an ascribed issue price of HK$1.00 per share as partial consideration for the acquisition

of interest in a jointly-controlled entity, as detailed in note 32(b).

(ii) During the year, the Group recorded a gain of HK$2,600,000 on the deemed disposal, and a

goodwill of HK$14,660,000 on the deemed acquisition, of interest in an associate.

(iii) Assets transferred under the Group reorganisation in 2000

In 2000, the Company and LSD entered into a reorganisation agreement for the transfer by the

Company of certain hotel and ancillary assets with an aggregate value of HK$685,410,000 to

LSD, in the form of the disposal of the equity interests in subsidiaries and associates and a long

term investment, and, at the same time, the transfer by LSD of certain technology-oriented assets

with an aggregate value of HK$1,085,370,000 to the Company. The excess consideration of

HK$399,960,000 payable by the Company to LSD in respect of such asset transfers was

deducted from the outstanding principal amount of the indebtedness of HK$1,900,000,000,

which FHEL owed to GPEL. As a result, the amount due from FHEL was reduced to

HK$1,500,040,000 as at 31st December, 2000. Further details of the subsidiaries acquired and

disposed of in this asset transfers are detailed in notes 34(c) and (d) above. Other major non-

cash transactions in respect of such asset transfers are summarised below:

HK$’000

Land and buildings acquired 75,000

Marketable securities acquired 513,300

Equity interests in associates acquired 244,750

Equity interests in associates disposed of 88,737

Long term investment disposed of 60,000

(iv) In 2000, the Company issued a total of 57,140,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at an

ascribed issue price of approximately HK$0.70 per share as partial consideration for the

acquisition of interests in two associates.
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35. L I T I G A T I O N

(a) In 1998, the Group disposed of its 50% interest in Delta Hotels Limited (‘‘DHL’’) to Canadian Pacific

Hotels Corporation (the ‘‘Purchaser’’). Under the terms of the sale and purchase agreement, C$10

million (approximately HK$52 million) of the sale proceeds was held in escrow (the ‘‘Escrow Funds’’)

pending the expiration of a warranty period.

The Purchaser made claims against the Escrow Funds in 2000. Subsequently, C$8 million

(approximately HK$42 million) of the Escrow Funds was released to the Group and the other

owner during 2000. The Group and the other owner have commenced action against the Purchaser for

the remaining C$2 million (approximately HK$10 million), and the Purchaser has issued a

counterclaim for the C$2 million (approximately HK$10 million).

The litigation is still in a discovery stage, and the directors are uncertain as to the amount of the

Escrow Funds that will be recovered by the Group. However, the Group has been advised by the other

owner that they have substantive grounds to rebut the defence and counterclaims made by the

Purchaser, and the directors are satisfied that the Group will receive a significant portion of the Escrow

Funds in due course.

(b) In the 1999 annual report, it was reported the Group had lost its appeal in the litigation in respect of

the Whistler Mountain Inn, Limited Partnership (‘‘WMILP’’) against the limited partners. Subsequent

to the appeal, the Group settled with the plaintiffs the quantum of damages, interest, and costs of the

action, and the court appointed receiver of the limited partnership commenced the liquidation of the

limited partnership. However, the action with the limited partners and the subsequent settlement did

not deal with a separate C$600,000 claim from one of the limited partners against the Group and the

other limited partners. The claimant claimed that he acquired his units in the WMILP in 1982 on the

basis that they would not be subject to the limited partnership agreement, and wanted the return of all

the rent earned on his partnership units since 1982. Although this separate action has been

outstanding since 1989, it has been inactive. A tentative settlement was reached with the claimant

during the year and the parties involved are now negotiating the distribution of the proceeds. It is

believed that the matter will be resolved in the spring of 2002.

The exposure of the Group to this litigation has been covered by an indemnity from LSD and from Mr.

Lam Kin Ngok, Peter, a director of the Company.

(c) In the 1999 annual report, it was reported that Sun Microsystems Inc. (‘‘SMI’’) had commenced legal

proceedings against the Group in March 2000, alleging the Group’s use of the ‘‘eSun’’ trademark was a

passing off of SMI’s own trademarks. The interlocutory injunction application by SMI was dismissed

by the High Court of Hong Kong, with a strong indication from the Court that SMI’s case lacked merit.

The parties are actively negotiating a settlement of the action, and the Group is confident that it will

receive some compensation from SMI for legal expenses incurred by the Group in this action.
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36. C O M M I T M E N T S

(a) Commitments not provided for in the financial statements at the balance sheet date were as follows:

Group Company

2001 2000 2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Capital commitments contracted for 32,859 14,253 — —

In addition, during the year, the Group has committed to invest in the development of a television city

with a programme production centre in Macau the completion of which is scheduled in 2003. At 31st

December, 2001, the authorised but not contracted for commitment in respect of this project

amounted to HK$258,249,000. At 31st December, 2000, the Group has authorised but not contracted

for commitments amounted to HK$46,660,000.

(b) The Group leases certain of its office properties and a parcel of land in Macau under operating lease

arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years, and the

lease term of the Macau production centre is twenty five years.

At 31st December, 2001, the Group and the Company had total future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

Group Company

2001 2000 2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(Restated) (Restated)

Within one year 2,775 2,830 504 504

In the second to fifth years, inclusive 4,145 2,014 504 —

After five years 16,209 — — —

23,129 4,844 1,008 504

SSAP 14 (Revised), which was adopted during the year, requires lessees under operating leases to

disclose the total future minimum operating lease payments, rather than only the payments to be made

during the next year as was previously required. Accordingly, the prior year comparative amounts have

been restated to accord with the current year’s presentation.
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36. C O M M I T M E N T S ( c o n t i n u e d )

(c) In addition, during current year, the Group has entered into an agreement to lease a satellite channel at

an annual licence fee of US$800,000 for a term of twelve years. At 31st December, 2001, the total

future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Group Company

2001 2000 2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 3,390 — — —

In the second to fifth years, inclusive 24,932 — — —

After five years 37,398 — — —

65,720 — — —

37. C O N T I N G E N T L I A B I L I T I E S

Contingent liabilities not provided for in the financial statements at the balance sheet date were as follows:

Group Company

2001 2000 2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Guarantees given to third parties in connection

with restaurant operations — 446 — —

Guarantee given to LSD in connection with the

disposal of an associate to LSD (note) 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000

Guarantee given to a supplier in connection

with credit facilities given to a subsidiary — — 2,000 —

25,000 25,446 27,000 25,000

Note:

In connection with the Reorganisation Agreement described further in note 20, the Group disposed of its 45% interest in Guangzhou

International Golf Club Ltd. (‘‘GIGC’’) to LSD. GIGC owns and operates a golf club in Xiancun, Zhencheng, Guangdong Province, the

People’s Republic of China.

GIGC has not obtained valid land use rights for a total area of 1,430 mu (approximately 953,340 square metres) of the land (‘‘the Land’’) on

which the golf club is situated, which would show unencumbered ownership over such Land upon completion of the transaction. As a

result, the Group entered into a Deed of Undertaking and Indemnity with LSD on 30th June, 2000.

The Group has undertaken to indemnify LSD or any of its subsidiaries against all losses and charges suffered or sustained, directly or

indirectly, in connection with GIGC not having obtained the land use right certificates, and all other relevant documents of the Land on

which the golf club is situated or not showing unencumbered ownership over the Land. The aggregate liability of the Group under the

indemnity created is limited to a maximum of HK$25,000,000.
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38. C O M P A R A T I V E A M O U N T S

As further explained in note 2 to the financial statements, due to the adoption of certain new and revised

SSAPs during the current year, the accounting treatment and presentation of certain items and balances in

the financial statements have been revised to comply with the new requirements. Accordingly, a prior year

adjustment has been made (note 4) and certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with

the current year’s presentation.

39. A P P R O V A L O F T H E F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19th April,

2002.

31st December, 2001

eSUN HOLDINGS ANNUAL REPORT 2001

80

Notes to Financial Statements



NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company will be held

at The Chater Room III, Basement 1, The Ritz-Carlton Hong Kong, 3 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

on Monday, 27th May, 2002 at 9 : 30 a.m. for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the audited Financial Statements and the Reports of the Directors and of the

Auditors for the year ended 31st December, 2001.

2. To re-elect Directors and to fix the Directors’ remuneration.

3. To appoint Auditors and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

4. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without amendments, the following

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

‘‘THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (c) of this Resolution, the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant

Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to issue, allot and deal with

additional shares of the Company, and to make or grant offers, agreements and options

(including warrants, bonds, debentures, notes and any securities which carry rights to subscribe

for or are convertible into shares of the Company) which would or might require the exercise of

such power be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution shall authorise the Directors during the Relevant

Period to make or grant offers, agreements and options (including warrants, bonds, debentures,

notes and any securities which carry rights to subscribe for or are convertible into shares of the

Company) which would or might require the exercise of such power after the end of the Relevant

Period;

(c) the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally

to be allotted (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) and issued by the Directors pursuant

to the approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution, otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue

(as hereinafter defined); or (ii) an issue of shares of the Company as scrip dividends pursuant to

the Bye-laws of the Company from time to time; or (iii) an issue of shares of the Company under

any option scheme or similar arrangement for the grant or issue to employees of the Company

and/or any of its subsidiaries of shares of the Company or rights to acquire shares of the

Company, shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of

the Company as at the date of this Resolution, and the said approval shall be limited accordingly;

and

(d) for the purposes of this Resolution,

‘‘Relevant Period’’ means the period from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the

earlier of:

(i) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company;

(ii) the revocation or variation of the authority given under this Resolution by an ordinary

resolution of the Members of the Company in general meeting; or
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(iii) the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting of the

Company is required by law or the Bye-laws of the Company to be held; and

‘‘Rights Issue’’ means an offer of shares of the Company open for a period fixed by the Directors

to the holders of shares whose names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on a

fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings of such shares as at that date (subject to

such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary or expedient in

relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the

laws of, or the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any

territory applicable to the Company).’’

5. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as a Special

Resolution:

‘‘THAT ‘‘ ’’ be adopted as the Company’s Chinese name for the purpose of

registration in Hong Kong.’’

By Order of the Board

Yeung Kam Hoi

Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 19th April, 2002

Notes:

(a) A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more

proxies to attend and vote in his stead in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws. A proxy need not

be a Member of the Company.

(b) A form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is

signed, or a notarially certified copy thereof, must be deposited with the Company’s Registrars in Hong

Kong, Tengis Limited, at 4th Floor, Hutchison House, 10 Harcourt Road, Central, Hong Kong not less

than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the Annual General Meeting or adjourned

meeting (as the case may be) and in default the proxy shall not be treated as valid. Completion and

return of the form of proxy shall not preclude Members from attending and voting in person at the

Annual General Meeting or at any adjourned meeting should they so wish.

(c) Ordinary Resolution No. 4 relates to the granting of a general mandate to the Directors of the

Company to issue new shares of up to a maximum of 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the

issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the said resolution. The Company has no

immediate plan to issue such new shares.

(d) Special Resolution No. 5 relates to the adoption of a Chinese name by the Company. With effect from

3rd July, 2001, the Companies Registry in Hong Kong allows oversea companies to register their

corporate names in both English and Chinese under Part XI of the Companies Ordinance

notwithstanding the fact that only the English or Chinese name of a company appears on the

certificate of incorporation issued in the company’s place of incorporation. It is proposed to take

advantage of this change in policy of the Companies Registry in Hong Kong and to adopt

‘‘ ’’ as the Chinese name of the Company for the purpose of registration in Hong

Kong.
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